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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), that relate to future events or our future
financial performance regarding, among other things, the plans, strategies and prospects, both business and financial, of the Company. These statements are
based on the beliefs and assumptions of our management team. Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by
these forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot assure you that we will achieve or realize these plans, intentions or expectations. Forward-
looking statements are inherently subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Generally, statements that are not historical facts, including statements
concerning possible or assumed future actions, business strategies, events or results of operations, are forward-looking statements. These statements may be

preceded by, followed by or include the words “believes,

99 ¢ 99 ¢ 99 ¢ 99 ¢

estimates,” “expects,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “plans,”

“scheduled,” “anticipates” or “intends” or similar expressions. Forward-looking statements contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q include, but
are not limited to, statements about:

the success, cost and timing of our product development activities;

the commercialization and adoption of our existing products and the success of our future product offerings;

the potential attributes and benefits of our products and services;

our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approval for our products, and any related restrictions and limitations of any approved product;
our ability to identify, in-license or acquire additional technology;

our ability to maintain our existing licensing, manufacturing and supply agreements;

our ability to compete with other companies currently marketing or engaged in the development of magnetic resonance imaging
technologies, many of which have greater financial and marketing resources than us;

the size and growth potential of the markets for our products and services, and the ability of our products and services to serve those
markets, either alone or in partnership with others;

the pricing of our products and services and reimbursement for medical procedures conducted using our products and services;
changes in applicable laws or regulations;

our estimates regarding expenses, revenue, capital requirements and needs for additional financing;

our ability to raise financing in the future;

our financial performance;

our success in retaining or recruiting, or necessary changes in, our officers, key employees or directors;

intense competition and competitive pressures from other companies in the industry in which we operate;

market conditions and global and economic factors, such as inflation or the conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East;

the inability to maintain the listing of our Class A common stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC (“Nasdaq”);

our intellectual property rights; and

the effect of legal, tax and regulatory changes.



These and other risks and uncertainties are described in greater detail under the caption “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of Part I of our Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, in Item 1A of Part II of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and in other filings that we make with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). The risks described under the heading “Risk Factors” are not exhaustive. New risk factors emerge from
time to time, and it is not possible to predict all such risk factors, nor can we assess the impact of all such risk factors on our business or the extent to which
any factor or combination of factors may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of performance. You should not put undue reliance on these statements, which speak only as of the date hereof. All forward-
looking statements attributable to the Company or persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by the foregoing cautionary
statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events
or otherwise, except as required by law.




Item 1. Financial Statements

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, less allowance of $308 and $321 as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively

Unbilled receivables

Inventory

Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other long term assets

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Deferred grant funding
Deferred revenue
Due to related parties
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long term deferred revenue
Other noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTE 13)
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

PART I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(Unaudited)

Class A Common stock, $.0001 par value; 600,000,000 shares authorized; 57,131,702 and 56,840,949 shares
issued and outstanding at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively

Class B Common stock, $.0001 par value; 27,000,000 shares authorized; 15,055,288 shares issued and
outstanding at June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively

Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders' equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
53,809 75,183
— 621
5,368 3,189
2,121 942
7,465 6,582
2,262 2,391
71,025 88,908
3,429 2,999
2,156 2,292
76,610 94,199
2,238 1,214
— 621
1,425 1,453
66 61
5,056 5,419
8,785 8,768
1,064 968
— 64
9,849 9,800
5 5
2 2
340,480 338,114
(273,726) (253,722)
66,761 84,399
76,610 94,199




CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (Unaudited)

HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Three Months Ended

Six Months Ended

June 30, June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023

Sales

Device $ 2,970 $ 2,810 5674 $ 4,942

Service 661 571 1,252 1,074

Total sales 3,631 3,381 6,926 6,016

Cost of sales

Device 1,422 1,549 2,921 2,620

Service 406 388 848 797

Total cost of sales 1,828 1,937 3,769 3,417

Gross margin 1,803 1,444 3,157 2,599
Operating Expenses:

Research and development 5,959 5,331 11,529 10,792

General and administrative 4,421 5,306 8,851 11,488

Sales and marketing 2,269 2,499 4,273 5,046
Total operating expenses 12,649 13,136 24,653 27,326
Loss from operations (10,846) (11,692) (21,496) (24,727)

Interest income 675 1,030 1,471 1,899

Other income, net 15 25 21 31
Loss before provision for income taxes (10,156) (10,637) (20,004) (22,797)
Provision for income taxes — — — —
Net loss and comprehensive loss $ (10,156) $ (10,637) (20,004) $ (22,797)

Net loss per common share attributable to common stockholders, basic and

diluted $ 0.14) § (0.15) 028) § (0.32)

Weighted-average shares used to compute net loss per share attributable to

common stockholders, basic and diluted 72,041,332 71,201,170 71,987,688 71,033,629

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (Unaudited)

Balance, December 31, 2023
Net loss
Issuance of restricted stock
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, March 31, 2024
Net loss
Issuance of restricted stock
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, June 30, 2024

Balance, December 31, 2022
Net loss
Issuance of restricted stock
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, March 31, 2023
Net loss
Issuance of restricted stock
Exercise of stock options
Stock-based compensation expense
Balance, June 30, 2023

(in thousands, except share amounts)

Total
Class A Common Stock Class B Common Stock Additional Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Deficit Equity

56,840,989 $ 15,055,288 338,114 $ (253,722) $ 84,399
— — — (9,848 ) (9,848)

41,007 — — — —

70,670 — 55 — 55

— — 1,032 — 1,032

56,952,666 15,055,288 339,201 (263,570) 75,638
— — — (10,156 ) (10,156 )

34915 — — — —

144,121 — 105 — 105

— — 1,174 — 1,174

57,131,702 $ 15,055,288 340,480 $ (273,726) $ 66,761

Total
Class A Common Stock Class B Common Stock Additional Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Amount Shares Amount Paid-in Capital Deficit Equity

55,622,488 $ 15,055,288 333,199 $ (209,484) $ 123,722
— — — (12,160) (12,160)

324,296 — — — —

54,211 — 49 — 49

— — 1,126 — 1,126

56,000,995 15,055,288 334,374 (221,644 ) 112,737
— — — (10,637) (10,637)

219,887 — — — —

63,656 — 58 — 58

— — 1,133 — 1,133

56,284,538 $ 15,055,288 335,565 $ (232,281) § 103,291

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Unaudited)

(in thousands)

Six Months Ended
June 30,
2024 2023
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss (20,004) $ (22,797)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation 516 513
Stock-based compensation expense 2,206 2,259
Loss on disposal of property and equipment, net 100 100
Payments received on net investment in lease 18 4
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, net (2,179) (1,845)
Unbilled receivables (1,179) (209)
Inventory (1,000) (1,537)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (518) 946
Due from related parties — 48
Prepaid inventory 693 281
Other long term assets 46 129
Accounts payable 867 666
Deferred grant funding (621) 198
Deferred revenue 68 (134)
Due to related parties 5 45
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 912) (1,817)
Operating lease liabilities, net 1 —
Net cash used in operating activities (21,893) (23,150)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (216) (283)
Net cash used in investing activities (216) (283)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 114 107
Net cash provided by financing activities 114 107
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash (21,995) (23,326)
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of period 75,804 118,243
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period 53,809 94,917
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash reported in the balance sheets
Cash and cash equivalents 53,809 93,948
Restricted cash — 969
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash 53,809 $ 94,917
Supplemental disclosure of noncash information:
Unpaid purchase of property and equipment 735 $ 28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these condensed consolidated financial statements.



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(all amounts are in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

1. ORGANIZATION AND DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

Hyperfine, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, as applicable, “Hyperfine” or the “Company”), formerly known as HealthCor Catalio Acquisition Corp.
(“HealthCor”), was incorporated as a Cayman Islands exempted company on November 18, 2020. The Company’s legal name became Hyperfine, Inc. in
connection with the closing (the “Closing”) of the business combination with HealthCor (the “Business Combination’) on December 22, 2021 (the
“Closing Date”). In connection with the Closing, Hyperfine, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“Legacy Hyperfine”), and Liminal Sciences, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“Liminal”), merged with and into separate wholly owned subsidiaries of HealthCor and became wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company
(the “Mergers”), and changed their names to Hyperfine Operations, Inc. and Liminal Operations, Inc., respectively. Liminal subsequently changed its name
to Liminal Sciences, Inc.

The Company is an innovative health technology business with a mission to revolutionize patient care globally through accessible, affordable, clinically
relevant ultra-low-field (“ULF”) magnetic resonance (“MR”) brain imaging. The Company's Swoop® Portable MR Imaging® System (“Swoop® system”)
produces high-quality images at a lower magnetic field strength than conventional magnetic resonance imaging (“MRI”) scanners. The Swoop® system is
designed to transform brain MR for the patient, the clinician and the provider, and to provide a highly differentiated experience for patients, timely imaging
to clinicians, and favorable economics for hospital administrators. The Swoop® system is a portable, ULF MRI device for producing images that display
the internal structures of the head where full diagnostic examination is not clinically practical. When interpreted by a trained physician, these images
provide information that can be useful in determining a diagnosis. Healthcare professionals can use the Swoop® system to make effective clinical
diagnoses and decisions in various care settings where conventional MRI devices are inaccessible. The easy-to-use interface and portable design of the
Company's Swoop® system make it easily and readily accessible anywhere in a hospital, clinic, or patient care site and it does not require any special
facilities accommodations nor specialized personnel to operate safely. ULF MR does not expose patients to harmful ionizing radiation and compares
favorably in this regard to X-ray computed tomography (“CT”) or positron emission tomography (“PET”).

The Company's Swoop® system received initial 510(k) clearance for brain imaging from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) in 2020. In
February and October 2023, the Company received 510(k) clearances from the FDA to its Swoop® system Al-powered software. The combination of these
two software updates significantly improved diffusion-weighted imaging (“DWI”), incorporated deep-learning based denoising in the post-processing of
DWTI images for crisper images, and improved image quality for all Swoop® system sequences. In July 2024, the Company received 510(k) clearance from
the FDA for the latest update to its Swoop® system Al-powered software. This software update significantly reduces scan times across multiple MR
sequences without sacrificing image quality. The Swoop® system has also received marketing authorization for brain imaging in several countries,
including the European Union (CE certification), the United Kingdom (UK Conformity Assessment (“UKCA”)), Canada, Australia and New Zealand. All
of the Company’s revenue to date has been generated from sales of the Swoop® system and related services. The Company has an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary in the United Kingdom that did not have any significant operations during 2023 nor during the six months ended June 30, 2024.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation and Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) and pursuant to the accounting disclosure rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”). Certain information and note disclosures normally included in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been condensed or omitted pursuant to such rules and regulations. All intercompany transactions
and balances have been eliminated.



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(all amounts are in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

These condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and notes included in the Company’s
audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. The condensed consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2023 included herein was derived from the audited consolidated financial statements as of that date.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all normal recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the financial
position, results of operations, and cash flows for the interim periods. The results for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 are not necessarily
indicative of the results to be expected for any subsequent quarter, the year ending December 31, 2024, or any other period.

Except as described elsewhere in this Note 2 under the heading “Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements”, there have been no material changes to the
Company’s significant accounting policies as described in the audited consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2023 and 2022.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to risks and uncertainties caused by events with significant geopolitical and macroeconomic impacts, including, but not limited to,
the conflicts in Ukraine and the Middle East, inflation and actions taken to counter such impacts. The Company relies on single source manufacturers and
suppliers for the supply of its products. Disruption from these manufacturers or suppliers has and would have a negative impact on the Company’s
business, financial position and results of operations in its consolidated financial statements. The Company continues to critically review its liquidity and
anticipated capital requirements in light of the significant uncertainty created by geopolitical and macroeconomic conditions.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company's cash and cash equivalents are deposited with several major financial institutions. At times, deposits in these institutions exceed the amount
of insurance provided on such deposits. The Company reduces this risk by maintaining such deposits with high quality financial institutions that
management believes are creditworthy and the Company monitors this credit risk and makes adjustments to the concentrations as necessary. The Company
has not experienced any losses in such accounts and does not believe that it is exposed to any significant risk of loss on these balances.

With respect to accounts receivable, credit risk is mitigated by the Company’s ongoing credit evaluation of its customers’ financial condition. As of June
30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had four customers and two customers, respectively, that each accounted for more than 10% of trade
receivables. With respect to revenue four and two customers each accounted for more than 10% of revenue for the three and six months ended June 30,
2024, respectively. One customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue for each of the three and six months ended June 30, 2023.

Segment Information

The Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM?”) is its Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”). Substantially all of the Company’s long-lived assets
are located in the United States. Other than revenue recognized in non-U.S. countries of $1,901 and $4,335 for the three and six months ended June 30,
2024, and $2,897 and $3,931 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively, all of the revenues during these periods were earned in the
United States. Since the Company is aggregated into a single reportable segment, all required financial segment information is provided in the condensed
consolidated financial statements.

10



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(all amounts are in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires the Company to make estimates and
assumptions about future events that affect the amounts reported in its condensed consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Future events
and their effects cannot be determined with certainty. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates these estimates and assumptions. Significant estimates
and assumptions included:

. Revenue recognition, including determination of the timing and pattern of satisfaction of performance obligations, determination of the
standalone selling price (“SSP”) of performance obligations;

. Allowance for credit losses;

. Net realizable value (the selling price as well as estimated costs of disposal and transportation) of inventory, and demand and future use of
inventory;

. Valuation allowances with respect to deferred tax assets; and

. Assumptions underlying the fair value used in the calculation of stock-based compensation expense.

The Company bases these estimates on historical and anticipated results and trends and on various other assumptions that the Company believes are
reasonable under the circumstances, including assumptions as to future events. Changes in estimates are recorded in the period in which they become
known. Actual results could differ from those estimates, and any such differences may be material to the Company’s condensed consolidated financial
statements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In March 2024, the SEC issued final rules under SEC Release No. 33-11275, The Enhancement and Standardization of Climate-Related Disclosures for
Investors. Effective fiscal year 2026, the Company is required to disclose climate-related risks that are reasonably likely to have a material impact on the
Company’s business strategy, results of operations, or financial condition. Additionally, the Company will be required to disclose the effects of severe
weather events and other natural conditions within the notes to the financial statements, subject to certain materiality thresholds. Effective fiscal year 2027,
required disclosures will also include disclosure of material direct greenhouse gas emissions from operations owned or controlled (Scope 1) and material
indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased energy consumed in owned or controlled operations (Scope 2). In April 2024, the SEC issued an order
voluntarily staying the effectiveness of the new rules pending the completion of judicial review of certain legal challenges to their validity. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of these rules assuming adoption as well as monitoring the status of the related litigation and the SEC’s stay.

In March 2024, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2024-02, Codification Improvements-Amendments to Remove
References to the Concepts Statements. The ASU contains amendments to the ASC that remove references to various FASB Concepts Statements. This
update is effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2024, though early adoption is permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption
of this standard to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures, which enhances effective tax
rate reconciliation disclosure requirements and provides clarity to the disclosures of income taxes paid, income before taxes and provision for income taxes.
The amendments are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. Early adoption is permitted for annual financial statements that have not
yet been issued or made available for issuance. The amendments in this update should be applied on a prospective basis. Retrospective application is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating this ASU to determine the impact of the amendments on the Company’s consolidated financial statements
and disclosures.

11



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(all amounts are in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

In November 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-07 “Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable Segment Disclosures.” This ASU
expands public entities’ segment disclosures by requiring disclosure of significant segment expenses that are regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker and included within each reported measure of segment profit or loss, an amount and description of its composition for other segment items,
and interim disclosures of a reportable segment’s profit or loss and assets. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023, and for
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. This ASU is applicable to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, and subsequent interim periods, with early application permitted. The Company does not expect the adoption of this
standard to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

Other recent accounting pronouncements issued by the FASB, including its Emerging Issues Task Force, the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the SEC have not had, or are not believed by management to have, a material impact on the Company’s present or future financial
statements.

3. REVENUE RECOGNITION

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by product type. The Company believes that these categories best represent the payor
types by nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of its revenue streams. The following table summarizes the Company’s disaggregated revenues:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
Pattern of
Recognition 2024 2023 2024 2023
Device Point in time $ 2,970 $ 2,810 $ 5,674 $ 4,942
Service Over time 661 571 1,252 1,074
Total revenue $ 3,631 $ 3381 $ 6,926 $ 6,016

Contract Balances

Contract balances represent amounts presented in the condensed consolidated balance sheets when either the Company has transferred goods or services to
the customer, or the customer has paid consideration to the Company under the contract. These contract balances include trade accounts receivable and
deferred revenue. Deferred revenue represents consideration received from customers at the beginning of the subscription period for services that are
transferred to the customer over the respective subscription period. The accounts receivable balances represent amounts billed to customers for goods and
services where the Company has an unconditional right to payment of the amount billed.

The following table provides information about receivables and deferred revenue from contracts with customers:

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Accounts receivable, net $ 5,368 $ 3,189
Unbilled receivables - current $ 2,121 $ 942
Unbilled receivables - non-current'” $ 1,103 $ 1,044
Deferred revenue $ 1,425 $ 1,453
Long term deferred revenue $ 1,064 $ 968

(1) Recorded in other long term assets in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

The Company recognizes a receivable when it has an unconditional right to payment. Typical payment terms require the Company's customers to pay the
Company within 30 days of invoice and up to less than one year based on the terms agreed upon with the respective customer.

12



HYPERFINE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudited)
(all amounts are in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

Accounts Receivable, Unbilled Services, and Deferred Revenue

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value. Unbilled receivables arise when performance obligations are satisfied for which revenue has been
recognized but the customers have not been billed. Contractual provisions and payment schedules may or may not correspond to the timing of the
performance of services under the contract.

Deferred revenue is a contract liability that consists of customer payments received in advance of performance and billings in excess of revenue
recognized, net of revenue recognized from the balance at the beginning of the period.

The amount of revenue recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 that was included in the deferred revenue balance at the beginning
of the period was $493 and $879, respectively.

The amount of revenue recognized during the three and six months ended June 30, 2023 that was included in the deferred revenue balance at the beginning
of the period was $482 and $812, respectively.

Timing of Billing and Performance

Difference in the timing of revenue recognition and associated billings and cash collections result in recording of billed accounts receivable, unbilled
accounts receivable (including contract assets), and deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheet. Amounts are billed in accordance with the agreed-
upon contractual terms, resulting in recording unbilled accounts receivable in instances where the right to bill is contingent solely on the passage of time,
and contract assets in instances where the right to consideration is conditional on something other than the passage of time.

Revenue from Leasing Arrangements

Revenue from leasing arrangements is not subject to the revenue standard for contracts with customers and remains separately accounted for under ASC
842, including leases for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and the year ended December 31, 2023. The Company recorded service revenue
from lease arrangements of $77 and $159 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively. The Company recorded service revenue from
lease arrangements of $114 and $229 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively. The Company records revenue from the sale of
hardware devices under sales-type leases as device revenue in an amount equal to the present value of minimum lease payments at the inception of the
lease. Sales-type leases also produce financing income, which is included in device revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and
comprehensive loss and is recognized at effective rates of return over the lease term.

Costs of Obtaining or Fulfilling Contracts

The Company incurs incremental costs of obtaining contracts with customers. Incremental costs of obtaining contracts, which include commissions paid as
a result of obtaining contracts with customers, are capitalized to the extent that the Company expects to recover such costs. Capitalized costs are amortized
in a pattern that is consistent with the Company’s transfer to the customer of the related goods and services. Such costs are recorded in Other long term
assets and were $388 and $391 as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, the
Company recognized $328 and $406, respectively, in expense related to the amortization of the capitalized contract costs. During the three and six months
ended June 30, 2023, the Company recognized $25 and $125, respectively, in expense related to the amortization of the capitalized contract costs.

Transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations
As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the Company had remaining performance obligations amounting to $5,621 and $5,661, respectively. The

Company expects to recognize approximately 25% of its remaining performance obligations as revenue in fiscal year 2024, and an additional 75% in fiscal
year 2025 and thereafter.
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4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value estimates of financial instruments are made at a specific point in time, based on relevant information about financial markets and specific
financial instruments. As these estimates are subjective in nature, involving uncertainties and matters of significant judgment, they cannot be determined
with precision. Changes in assumptions can significantly affect estimated fair value.

The Company measures fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the reporting date. The Company utilizes a three-tier hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used in the valuation
methodologies in measuring fair value:

Level 1 — Valuations based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that an entity has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or
other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 — Valuations based on inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
The Company has no assets or liabilities valued with Level 3 inputs.

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses and other current liabilities approximates their fair values due to
the short-term or on demand nature of these instruments.

The Company had no assets or liabilities classified as Level 2 or Level 3 and there were no transfers between fair value measurement levels during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2024 or 2023.

The Company had $53,658 and $74,685 of money market funds, demand deposit and savings accounts included in cash and cash equivalents and restricted
cash as of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. These assets were valued using quoted prices in active markets and accordingly were
classified as Level 1.

5. INVENTORIES

A summary of inventories is as follows:

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Raw materials $ 3,010 $ 1,757
Finished goods 4,455 4,825
Total inventories $ 7,465 $ 6,582

Manufacturing overhead costs primarily include management’s best estimate and allocation of the labor costs incurred related to acquiring finished goods
from the Company’s contract manufacturer. Labor costs include wages, taxes and benefits for employees involved in warehousing, logistics coordination,
material sourcing, and production planning activities.
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6. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

Property and equipment, net, are recorded at historical cost and consist of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023

Laboratory equipment $ 986 $ 986
Research devices 1,396 1,532
Sales and marketing devices 490 490
Computer equipment 678 668
Construction in progress 1,084 595
Tooling 832 505
Trade show assets 254 254
Leased devices 397 397
Other 591 611

6,708 6,038
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3,279) (3,039)
Property and equipment, net $ 3,429 $ 2,999

Depreciation expense amounted to $253 and $516 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively.
Depreciation expense amounted to $259 and $513 for the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively.
7. RIGHT-OF-USE (“ROU”) ASSETS AND LEASES LIABILITIES

The Company has operating leases for its corporate offices, including its Palo Alto, California lease agreement which expires on April 30, 2025. As of June
30, 2024, the Palo Alto, California lease had an operating lease ROU assets of $149, current lease liabilities of $160, which are included in the Company's
condensed consolidated balance sheets in other long term assets, accrued expenses and other current liabilities.

The weighted-average remaining lease term associated with the measurement of the Company's operating lease obligations is 13 months and the weighted-
average discount rate is 7.9%.

The Company recorded short-term operating lease cost during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 of $45 and $90, respectively. Cash paid for
operating lease during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 was $48 and $98, respectively.

Future minimum commitments due under the lease agreement as of June 30, 2024 are $116 for the remainder of 2024 and $50 thereafter.

On March 1, 2024, the Company entered into a lease agreement for approximately 10,000 square feet of warehouse space in Guilford, Connecticut. The
lease term is 12 months beginning March 1, 2024, and includes an option to renew for an additional one-year term at the then prevailing rental rate. The
exercise of the lease renewal option is at the Company’s sole discretion. The Company applied the practical expedient, which allows entities with leases of
12 months or shorter to not recognize ROU assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases. Future minimum commitments due under the lease agreement
as of June 30, 2024 are $35 for the remainder of 2024 and $12 thereafter.
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8. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities consist of the following:

June 30, December 31,
2024 2023
Bonuses $ 1,828 $ 2,463
Contracted services 1,893 1,237
Legal fees 273 412
Payroll and related benefits 661 676
Operating lease liabilities 160 185
Other 241 446
Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 5,056 $ 5,419

9. EQUITY INCENTIVE PLAN

The Company's 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) is administered by the Company's board of directors and its compensation committee, which may
grant restricted stock units (“RSUs”) and options to purchase shares either as incentive stock options or non-qualified stock options, and other stock-based
awards. The option grants are subject to certain terms and conditions, option periods and conditions, exercise rights and privileges as set forth in the Plan.

Stock option activity

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s outstanding stock options for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024:

Number of
Options
Outstanding at January 1, 2024 14,271,587
Granted " @ 5,081,283
Exercised (214,791)
Forfeited / Cancelled / Expired (636,727)
Outstanding at June 30, 2024 18,501,352

@) Includes new hire employee grants of stock options to purchase 275,000 shares of the Company's Class A common stock. Also includes annual
employee grants of stock options and special employee grants of stock options to purchase 1,975,283 shares of the Company's Class A common
stock, and grants to executive officers of stock options to purchase 2,435,000 shares of the Company's Class A common stock. The grants vest 25%
on the first anniversary date of the grant with the remainder vesting equally over the remaining 36 months, subject to the employee’s continued
service to the Company through the applicable vesting dates.

2) Includes the annual equity grants to each of the Company’s five nonemployee directors of non-qualified stock options to purchase 79,200 shares of
the Company’s Class A common stock, effective as of June 12, 2024, for an aggregate of non-qualified stock options to purchase 396,000 shares of
the Company’s Class A common stock. The grants will vest on the date of the Company's next regular annual stockholders meeting, subject to the
directors’ continued service to the Company through the vesting date.

In general, employee awards will vest based on continued service, which is generally over four years. Nonemployee director awards generally will vest in
one year based on continued service on the date of the next regular annual stockholders meeting. The grant date fair value of the award will be recognized
as stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service period. The grant date fair value was determined using similar methods and assumptions as
those previously disclosed by the Company.
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Restricted stock unit activity

The following table summarizes the changes in the Company’s outstanding RSUs for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024:

Number of
RSUs
Outstanding at January 1, 2024 369,026
Granted _
Vested (76,069)
Forfeited (26,449)
Outstanding at June 30, 2024 266,508

The following table presents details of stock-based compensation expenses by functional line item noted within the Company's operating expenses:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Cost of sales $ 24 3 28 % 48 % 51
Research and development 387 228 724 434
Sales and marketing 47 57 86 95
General and administrative 716 820 1,348 1,679
$ 1,174  $ 1,133  $ 2,206 $ 2,259

10. NET LOSS PER SHARE

Basic net loss per share is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock of the Company outstanding
during the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by giving effect to all common equivalent shares of the Company, including outstanding stock
options, RSUs and Earn-Out Shares (defined below), to the extent dilutive. Basic and diluted net loss per share was the same for each period presented as
the inclusion of all common equivalent shares of the Company outstanding would have been anti-dilutive.

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share for the Company’s common stock:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Numerator:
Net Loss $ (10,156) $ (10,637) $ (20,004) $ (22,797)
Numerator for Basic and Dilutive EPS — Loss available to common stockholders $ 10,156) $ (10,637) $ (20,004) $ (22,797)
Denominator:
Common Stock 72,041,332 71,201,170 71,987,688 71,033,629
Denominator for Basic and Dilutive EPS - Weighted-average common stock 72,041,332 71,201,170 71,987,688 71,033,629
Basic and dilutive net loss per share $ 0.14) S 0.15) $ 0.28) $ 0.32)
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Since the Company was in a net loss position for all periods presented, net loss per share attributable to Class A and Class B common stockholders was the
same on a basic and diluted basis, as the inclusion of all common equivalent shares outstanding would have been anti-dilutive. Anti-dilutive common
equivalent shares were as follows:

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, June 30,
2024 2023 2024 2023
Outstanding options to purchase common stock 18,501,352 14,244,285 18,501,352 14,244,285
Outstanding RSUs 266,508 911,148 266,508 911,148
Earn-Out Shares 9,357,835 9,357,835 9,357,835 9,357,835
Total anti-dilutive common equivalent shares 28,125,695 24,513,268 28,125,695 24,513,268

(1) The Company will issue to holders of Legacy Hyperfine and Liminal securities as of immediately prior to the effective time of the Mergers, in
accordance with their pro rata share, up to 10,000,000 shares of Class A common stock as earn-out consideration (the “Earn-Out Shares”) net of forfeitures,
if at any time during the period between the Closing Date of December 22, 2021 and the third anniversary of the Closing Date (the “Earn-Out Period”), (i)
the last share price of the Class A common stock is greater than or equal to $15.00 for any 20 trading days within any 30 consecutive trading day period, or
(ii) there is a transaction that will result in shares of Class A common stock being converted or exchanged into the right to receive cash or other
consideration having a value greater than or equal to $15.00. During the Earn-Out Period, if there is a transaction (other than for stock splits, stock
dividends, special cash dividends, reorganizations, recapitalizations or similar transactions affecting the Class A common stock) that will result in the
shares of Class A common stock being converted or exchanged into the right to receive cash or other consideration having a value less than $15.00, then
the right to receive Earn-Out Shares will terminate.

11. INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes under ASC 740, “Income Taxes” (“ASC 740). ASC 740 requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities for both the expected impact of differences between the financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities and for the expected future tax
benefit to be derived from tax loss and tax credit carry forwards. ASC 740 additionally requires a valuation allowance to be established when it is more
likely than not that all or a portion of deferred tax assets will not be realized.

Income taxes for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 are recorded at the Company’s estimated annual effective income tax rate, subject
to adjustments for discrete events, if they occur. The Company’s estimated annual effective tax rate was 0.0% for the three and six months ended June 30,
2024 and 2023. The primary reconciling items between the federal statutory rate of 21.0% for these periods and the Company’s overall effective tax rate of
0.0% were related to the effects of deferred state income taxes, research and development credits, stock-based compensation, and the valuation allowance
recorded against the full amount of its net deferred tax assets.

A valuation allowance is required when it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the Company’s deferred tax assets will not be realized. The
realization of deferred tax assets depends on the generation of sufficient future taxable income during the period in which the Company’s related temporary
differences become deductible. The Company has recorded a full valuation allowance against its net deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2024 and 2023 since
management believes that based on the earnings history of the Company, it is more likely than not that the benefits of these assets will not be realized.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company utilizes and subleases office and lab space in Connecticut, which is being leased from an unrelated landlord by 4Catalyzer Corporation
(“4C”), which is owned by a related party. The Company pays rent to 4C on a month-to-month basis. A total of approximately $120 and $248 was paid

during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively, and a total of approximately $105 and $163 was paid during the three and six months
ended June 30, 2023, respectively.
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Hyperfine entered into a Master Services Agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”) with 4C effective as of July 7, 2021 pursuant to which Hyperfine
may engage 4C to provide services such as general administration, facilities, information technology, financing, legal, human resources and other services,
through future statements of work and under terms and conditions to be determined by the parties with respect to any services to be provided. The
Company paid an aggregate of $31 and $65 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively, and the Company paid an aggregate of $14
and $121 during the three and six months ended June 30, 2023, respectively, under the Master Services Agreement. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31,
2023 there were $66 and $61 due to 4C, respectively, for expenses paid on the Company's behalf. These payables are included in due to related parties on
the condensed consolidated balance sheet.

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering all eligible U.S. employees. Contributions to the 401(k) plan are discretionary. The
Company did not make any matching contributions to the 401(k) plan for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 or 2023.

During 2020 and 2021, the Company was awarded multiple grants totaling $4,910 from the Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation (“BMGEF”) for the provision
and equipping of sites with the Company’s portable MR brain imaging system to enable the performance of a multi-site study focused on optimizing
diagnostic image quality. These grants are designed to provide data to validate the use of the Swoop® system in measuring the impact of maternal anemia,
malnutrition, infection and birth related injury. All of these grants are designed to support the deployment of a total of 25 Swoop® system devices and
other services to investigators, which commenced in the spring of 2021. In March 2023, the term of the BMGF grant agreement was extended to February
2024. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 25 and 22 Swoop® system units, respectively, have been delivered to the BMGF. In May 2023, the
Company was awarded an additional $3,354 grant from the BMGF to continue to develop a scalable approach to measuring neurodevelopment via low-
field MRI in neonates, infants, and young children in low-to-middle income countries through February 2026. The funds are accounted for as restricted
cash with a corresponding credit to deferred grant funding. Any grant funds, plus any interest income, that have not been used for, or committed to, the
project must be returned promptly to the BMGF upon expiration of or termination of the agreement. During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024,
the Company completed and delivered the remaining Swoop system® devices and delivered a grant milestone of a software update. During the three
months ended June 30, 2024, the Company received cash of $561 from the BMGF which settled an outstanding grant receivable of $470 as of March 31,
2024, and partially paid $91 of grant fulfilled during the three months ended June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, the Company recorded grant receivable of
$150 excluding interest earned of $10, in prepaid expenses and other current assets in the unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet. As of June 30,
2024, and December 31, 2023, there were no grant fund amounts that were required to be returned under the terms of the project.

Purchase Commitments

The Company’s purchase commitments and obligations include all open purchase orders and contractual obligations in the ordinary course of business,
including commitments with contract manufacturers and suppliers, for which the Company has not received the goods or services. A majority of these
purchase obligations are due within a year. Although open purchase orders are considered enforceable and legally binding, the terms generally allow the
Company the option to cancel, reschedule, and adjust its requirements based on the Company’s business needs prior to the delivery of goods or
performance of services.

Contingencies

The Company is, from time to time, a party to litigation that arises in the normal course of its business operations. The Company is not presently a party to
any litigation for which it believes a loss is probable requiring an amount to be accrued or a possible loss contingency requiring disclosure.
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The Company has indemnification obligations under some agreements that the Company enters into with other parties in the ordinary course of business,
including business partners, investors, contractors, and the Company’s officers, directors and certain employees. The Company has agreed to indemnify and
defend the indemnified party against claims and related losses suffered or incurred by the indemnified party from actual or threatened third-party claims
because of the Company’s activities or non-compliance with certain representations and warranties made by the Company. It is not possible to determine
the maximum potential loss under these indemnification provisions due to the Company’s limited history of prior indemnification claims and the unique
facts and circumstances involved in any particular case. The Company has not recorded any liability under such indemnification provisions within its
condensed consolidated balance sheets. The Company is not aware of any claims or other circumstances that would give rise to material payments from the
Company under such indemnification provisions.

The Company agreed to pay $1,000 to a third party service provider if the Company's pre-closing equity holders receive any Earn-Out Shares. As the
Company has not met the criteria to trigger the earn-out, such payment is not determined to be probable and no liability was recognized within our
condensed consolidated balance sheets. See Note 10. Net Loss Per Share, for further information regarding the earn-out criteria.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events through the date the condensed consolidated financial statements were issued and has determined that there
were no subsequent events required to be disclosed.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis provides information which management believes is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our
condensed consolidated results of operations and financial condition. The discussion should be read in conjunction with the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the consolidated financial statements and notes
thereto for the year ended December 31, 2023 contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the
“SEC”) on March 22, 2024. This discussion contains forward-looking statements and involves numerous risks and uncertainties, including, but not limited
to, those described in the “Risk Factors” sections of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, and of this Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q. Actual results may differ materially from those contained in any forward-looking statements. Unless the context otherwise requires,
references to “we”, “us”, “our”, and “the Company” are intended to mean the business and operations of Hyperfine, Inc. and its consolidated
subsidiaries. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, present
the financial position and results of operations of Hyperfine, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries.

Overview

We are an innovative health technology business with a mission to revolutionize patient care globally through accessible, affordable, clinically relevant
ultra-low-field (“ULF”’) magnetic resonance (“MR”) brain imaging. Our Swoop® Portable MR Imaging® System (“Swoop® system’) produces high-
quality images at a lower magnetic field strength than conventional magnetic resonance imaging (“MRI”) scanners. Our Swoop® system is designed to
transform brain MR for the patient, the clinician and the provider, and to provide a highly differentiated experience for patients, timely imaging to
clinicians, and favorable economics for hospital administrators. The Swoop® system is a portable, ULF MRI device for producing images that display the
internal structures of the head where full diagnostic examination is not clinically practical. When interpreted by a trained physician, these images provide
information that can be useful in determining a diagnosis. Healthcare professionals can use the Swoop® system to make effective clinical diagnoses and
decisions in various care settings where conventional MRI devices are inaccessible. The easy-to-use interface and portable design of our Swoop® system
make it easily and readily accessible anywhere in a hospital, clinic, or patient care site and it does not require any special facilities accommodations nor
specialized personnel to operate safely. ULF MR does not expose patients to harmful ionizing radiation and compares favorably in this regard to X-ray
computed tomography (“CT”) or positron emission tomography (“PET”).

The demand for MR imaging has been increasing due to the aging population and the rising prevalence of neurological, neurodegenerative, and
cardiovascular conditions, as well as the trends towards decentralized healthcare in mature as well as low- and middle-income countries. Healthcare
professionals and insurers recognize imaging as an effective, non-invasive diagnostic tool for evaluation and ongoing monitoring. The Swoop® system is
the next generation brain imaging device designed to increase access to MRI in a cost-effective manner and expand the current $35 billion imaging market.

Despite their advantages, many healthcare institutions worldwide lack the facilities, specialized operators, and capital necessary to acquire and maintain
expensive conventional MRI devices. The Swoop® system is the first U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”)-cleared, portable, ULF, MR brain
imaging system and is capable of providing imaging at multiple sites of care, such as intensive care units, clinics, emergency departments or physicians’
offices, and can inform the timely detection, diagnosis, monitoring, and treatment of acute and chronic conditions inside and outside the hospital. We
designed the Swoop® system to address the limitations of conventional imaging technologies and make MR brain imaging accessible nearly anytime and
anywhere across professional healthcare settings. We believe the adoption of the Swoop® system by healthcare professionals has clinical and economic
benefits throughout healthcare communities in both high and low resource settings.

The Swoop® system is Al-powered and integrates deep learning, a form of Al, for the reconstruction and denoising of T1, T2, and fluid-attenuated
inversion recovery (“FLAIR”) sequences. The Swoop® system also incorporates deep learning denoising in the diffusion-weighted imaging (“DWI”)
sequences for image post-processing. The integration of deep learning does not require any additional steps from the user. As a result, deep learning can
enhance the image quality and, consequently, the diagnostic value of images generated at ULF. The algorithms are designed to improve ULF image quality,
while reducing the impact of scan artifacts. The images created with these algorithms were validated by expert radiologists. The Swoop® system is used
clinically every day as the first mover
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in the field of portable ULF MRI, and with an install base that continues to expand. The learnings from this field experience have served to improve our
software, Al, and denoising algorithms resulting in the image quality and performance improvements of our product over the nine software releases since
our initial clearance. As we move forward, we are continuously investing in improving our Al-powered image quality and leveraging each imaging-focused
software release to further improve the Swoop® system performance.

Our Swoop® system received initial 510(k) clearance for brain imaging from the FDA in 2020 and has now received nine subsequent clearances from the
FDA after the initial clearance. In February and October 2023, we received 510(k) clearances from the FDA to our Swoop® system Al-powered software.
The combination of these two software updates significantly improved DWI, incorporated deep-learning based denoising in the post-processing of DWI
images for crisper images, and improved image quality for all Swoop® system sequences. In July 2024, we received 510(k) clearance from the FDA for the
latest update to our Swoop® system Al-powered software. This software update significantly reduces scan times across multiple MR sequences without
sacrificing image quality. The Swoop® system has also received marketing authorization for brain imaging in several countries, including the European
Union (CE certification), the United Kingdom (UK Conformity Assessment (“UKCA”)), Canada, Australia and New Zealand.

Key Performance Measures

Management reviews and analyzes several key performance measures including Total revenues and Total Swoop® system units sold. These measures are
reviewed and analyzed to evaluate our business performance, identify trends affecting our business, allocate capital, and make strategic decisions.

Total revenues were $3.6 million and $6.9 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively, an increase of $0.3 million, or 7.4% and
$0.9 million, or 15.1% from the three and six months ended June 30, 2023. See "Results of Operations". Total Swoop® system units sold were 13 units and
26 units, for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, respectively, a decrease of 1 unit and an increase of 2 units from the three and six months ended
June 30, 2023.

Factors Affecting Results of Operations
The following factors have been important to our business and we expect them to impact our results of operations and financial condition in future periods:
Technical innovation

We have developed our Swoop® system through extensive research and development activities. Moreover, our team is dedicated to clinical support
programs designed to integrate the Swoop® system into an array of diverse healthcare environments and applications. We believe that, from our
commercial and clinical experience, we are gaining invaluable insights into the Swoop® system’s utility. We believe these learnings will enable us to
further improve our product and develop new services and tools in the future. We are continuously improving our image quality and imaging capabilities.
Building upon this foundation and our expertise in ULF brain imaging, we plan to develop new imaging applications, broadening the range of clinical uses
for our proprietary technology. Additionally, we are leveraging our strengths in Al and cloud technology to explore the Swoop® system’s role as a brain
imaging clinical decision support platform. While these technical innovations may increase our research and development expenses, we expect them to
have a positive impact on our results of operations and profitability in the future.

Commercialization efforts of the Swoop® system
Our results have included revenue from the United States and outside the United States. Our Swoop® system received initial 510(k) clearance from the
FDA in 2020. Initially, we are focused on executing contracts with U.S. hospitals and hospital systems. We have built a direct sales and field support

organization in the United States who are working in strong collaboration to increase adoption, support successful implementations and support routine use
at customer sites. As of 2024, we have targeted a select number of international markets to add to our commercial efforts operating through distributors.
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Expand sales in international markets

In 2024, we are executing on our international expansion plans by entering into agreements with experienced and accomplished distributors. We have
distribution partners covering several countries across Europe and Asia Pacific, as well as Canada. With the Swoop® system’s transformative, affordable,
and accessible platform, we aim to serve more clinicians and patients needing brain imaging across the globe. The Swoop® system has received marketing
authorization for brain imaging in several countries, including the European Union (CE certification), the United Kingdom (UKCA), Canada, Australia and
New Zealand. Additionally, we have begun preparing for the regulatory approval process in India through Central Drugs Standard Control Organization.

Our commitment to the vision of providing affordable and accessible imaging that enables earlier detection and timely management of health conditions
worldwide is furthermore advanced by grant funding from the BMGF. Through our engagement with the BMGF, we have deployed and continue to deploy
the Swoop® system in low-middle income settings without readily-accessible MRI technology. The multiple grants provided by our research partnership
with the BMGF, which commenced funding in the spring of 2020, support the deployment of 25 Swoop® system and accessories to investigators. As of
June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 25 and 22 Swoop® system units, respectively, have been delivered to the BMGEF. The ongoing investigation is
designed to provide data to validate the potential use of the Swoop® system in measuring the impact of maternal anemia, malnutrition, infection, and birth-
related injury. In May 2023, we were awarded an additional 3-year grant from the BMGF to continue to develop a scalable approach to measuring
neurodevelopment via ULF brain imaging in neonates, infants, and young children in low-to-middle income countries. During the three and six months
ended June 30, 2024, we completed and delivered the remaining Swoop system® devices and delivered a grant milestone of a software update, we received
cash of $0.6 million which settled an outstanding grant receivable of $0.5 million as of March 31, 2024, and partially paid $0.1 million of grant fulfilled
during the three months ended June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, we recorded grant receivable of $0.2 million excluding interest earned, as part of
prepaid expenses and other current assets in our unaudited condensed consolidated balance sheet.

Results of Operations
The following is a discussion of our results of operations for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023. Our accounting policies are described

under "Summary of Significant Accounting Policies" in Note 2 to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q.

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
($ Amounts in thousands) 2024 2023 Y% 2024 2023 %
Sales
Device $ 2970 $ 2,810 57% $ 5,674 $ 4,942 14.8%
Service 661 571 15.8% 1,252 1,074 16.6 %
Total sales 3,631 3,381 74% $ 6,926 § 6,016 15.1%
Cost of Sales
Device 1,422 1,549 82)%$ 2,921 $ 2,620 11.5%
Service 406 388 4.6 % 848 797 6.4%
Cost of sales 1,828 1,937 (5.6)%$ 3,769 § 3,417 10.3%
Gross margin 1,803 1,444 24.9% 3,157 2,599 21.5%
Operating expenses:
Research and development 5,959 5,331 11.8% $ 11,529 $ 10,792 6.8 %
General and administrative 4,421 5,306 (16.7)% 8,851 11,488 (23.0)%
Sales and marketing 2,269 2,499 9.2)% 4,273 5,046 (15.3)%
Total operating expenses 12,649 13,136 3. 7% 24,653 27,326 9.8)%
Loss from operations (10,846 ) (11,692) 72)%$ (21,496) $ (24,727) (13.1)%
Interest income 675 1,030 (34.5)%$ 1,471  $ 1,899 (22.5)%
Other income, net 15 25 (40.0)% 21 31 (32.3)%
Loss before provision for income taxes (10,156) (10,637) 4.5)%$ (20,004) $ (22,797) (12.3)%
Provision for income taxes — — — —
Net loss and comprehensive loss $ 10,156) $ (10,637) 4.5)%$ (20,004) $ (22,797) (12.3)%
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Comparison of the Three Months Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 ($ Amounts shown in tables in thousands)

Sales
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount % 2024 2023 Amount %
Device $ 2970 $ 2,810 $ 160 57% $ 5674 $§ 4942 $ 732 14.8%
Service 661 571 90 15.8% 1,252 1,074 178 16.6 %
Total sales $ 3,631 $ 3,381 $ 250 74% $ 6,926 § 6,016 $ 910 15.1%

Device sales increased by $0.2 million, or 5.7%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023. The increase
in device revenue is mainly due to an increase in unit average selling price offset by a decreased sales volume by one unit in the three months ended June
30, 2024 as compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023.

Service sales increased by $0.1 million, or 15.8%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023. This
increase was driven by an increase in the volume of commercial system units installed as generally all commercial systems installations generate recurring
service revenue. Service sales revenue is generally recognized over time as we are providing the customer with ongoing access to our resources and
software upgrades throughout the subscription period. This type of revenue is recurring in nature and we expect will continue to grow as more devices are
sold.

Device sales increased by $0.7 million, or 14.8%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. The increase in
device revenue is mainly due to an increase by two units sold in the six months ended June 30, 2024.

Service sales increased by $0.2 million, or 16.6%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. This increase
was driven by an increase in the volume of commercial system units installed as generally all commercial systems installations generate recurring service

revenue.

Cost of sales

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount % 2024 2023 Amount %
Device $ 1,422 § 1,549 § (127) 82)%$ 2921 § 2,620 $ 301 11.5%
Service 406 388 18 4.6% 848 797 51 6.4%
Total cost of sales $ 1,828 § 1,937 § (109) (5.6)%$% 3,769 $ 3417 $ 352 10.3 %
Percentage of revenue 50.3% 57.3% 54.4% 56.8%

Cost of device sales decreased by $0.1 million, or 8.2%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023. This
decrease was driven primarily by a decreased sales volume by one unit in the three months ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2023 and inventory related charges in the three months ended June 30, 2023.

Cost of service sales increased by $18 thousand, or 4.6%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023.
This increase is due to the increased install base.

Cost of device sales increased by $0.3 million, or 11.5%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. This
increase was driven primarily by an increase by two units sold in the six months ended June 30, 2024.
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Cost of service sales increased by $0.1 million, or 6.4%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. This
increase is due to the increased install base.

Research and development

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount % 2024 2023 Amount %
Research and development $ 5959 § 5,331 $ 628 11.8% $ 11,529  $ 10,792 $ 737 6.8%

Research and development expenses increased by $0.6 million, or 11.8%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2023. This increase was driven primarily by an increase in personnel-related costs and stock-based compensation expenses of $0.7 million and
other research and development expenses.

Research and development expenses increased by $0.7 million, or 6.8%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June
30, 2023. This increase was driven primarily by an increase in personnel-related costs and stock-based compensation expenses of $1.4 million and an

increase in consulting costs of $0.5 million, partially offset by $0.9 million of a higher grant fulfillment credits.

General and administrative

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount % 2024 2023 Amount %
General and administrative $ 4,421 $ 5306 $ (885) (16.7)%$ 8,851 § 11,488  $ (2,637) (23.0)%

General and administrative expenses decreased by $0.9 million, or 16.7%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended
June 30, 2023. This decrease was driven primarily by a decrease in personnel-related costs and stock-based compensation expenses of $0.4 million, a
decrease in legal and patent expenses of $0.2 million, and a decrease in accounting, auditing, SEC, and insurance expenses of $0.2 million.

General and administrative expenses decreased by $2.6 million, or 23.0%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June
30, 2023. This decrease was driven primarily by a decrease in personnel-related costs and stock-based compensation expenses of $1.4 million, a decrease in

legal and patent expenses of $0.4 million, and a decrease in accounting, auditing, SEC, and insurance expenses of $0.4 million.

Sales and marketing

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount % 2024 2023 Amount %
Sales and marketing $ 2269 § 2,499 § (230) 9.2)%$ 4273 $ 5046 § (773) (15.3)%

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by $0.2 million, or 9.2%, for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30,
2023. This decrease was driven primarily by a decrease in marketing research and advertising of $0.2 million, while we continue to focus on sales and sales
support activities.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased by $0.8 million, or 15.3%, for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30,

2023. This decrease was driven primarily by a decrease in marketing research and advertising of $0.3 million, and a decrease in sales and marketing
infrastructure of $0.2 million, while we continue to focus on sales and sales support activities.
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Interest income

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount %o 2024 2023 Amount %
Interest income $ 675 $ 1,030 § (355) (34.5)%$ 1,471  $ 1,899 § (428) (22.5)%

Interest income decreased by $0.4 million for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023. The decrease was
driven primarily by lower cash balances in money market funds and demand deposit accounts during the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to
the three months ended June 30, 2023.

Interest income decreased by $0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. The decrease was
driven primarily by lower cash balances in money market funds and demand deposit accounts during the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the

six months ended June 30, 2023.

Other income, net

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended
June 30, Change June 30, Change
2024 2023 Amount % 2024 2023 Amount %
Other income, net $ 15 8 25§ (10) (40.0)%$ 21§ 31 8 (10) (32.3)%

Other income, net decreased by $10 thousand for the three months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the three months ended June 30, 2023. Other income,
net during the three months ended June 30, 2024 was $15 thousand consisting primarily of interest income from customer financing of approximately $24
thousand, offset by a net realized loss on foreign currencies of approximately $5 thousand and other expenses of $4 thousand.

Other income, net decreased by $10 thousand the six months ended June 30, 2024 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2023. Other income, net
during the six months ended June 30, 2024 was $21 thousand consisting primarily of interest income from customer financing of approximately $48
thousand, offset by a net realized loss on foreign currencies of approximately $18 thousand and other expenses of $9 thousand.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have funded our operations primarily with proceeds from the issuance of common and preferred stock. We have incurred significant cash burn and
recurring net losses, which includes a net loss of $20.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2024, and an accumulated deficit of $273.7 million as of
June 30, 2024. As of June 30, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents of $53.8 million. As we continue to invest in research and development of our
products and sales and marketing, we expect to continue to incur a significant cash burn and recurring net losses for the foreseeable future until such time
that our product and services sales generate enough gross profit to cover our operating expenses. However, we can provide no assurance that our product
and service sales will generate a net profit in the future or that our cash resources will be sufficient to continue our commercialization and development
activities.

In November 2023, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the SEC pursuant to which we registered for sale up to $150 million of any
combination of our Class A common stock, preferred stock, debt securities, warrants, rights and/or units from time to time and at prices and on terms that
we may determine. Our shelf registration statement on Form S-3 also includes a prospectus (the “Sales Agreement Prospectus™) covering up to an
aggregate of $50.0 million in shares of Class A common stock that we may issue and sell from time to time, through B. Riley Securities, Inc. (“B. Riley”)
acting as our sales agent, pursuant to the sales agreement that we entered into with B. Riley in November 2023 (the “Sales Agreement”), for our “at-the-
market” equity program. We are not obligated to make any sales of Class A common stock under the Sales Agreement. As of June 30, 2024, we had not
sold any Class A common stock pursuant to the Sales Agreement. As of the filing of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December
31,2023, we are subject to the SEC general instructions of Form S-3 known as the “baby shelf rules.” Under these instructions, the amount of funds we can
raise through primary public offerings of securities in any 12-month period using our registration statement on Form S-3 is limited to one-third of
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the aggregate market value of the shares of our common stock held by non-affiliates. Therefore, we are limited in the amount of proceeds we are able to
raise by selling shares of our common stock using our Form S-3, including under the Sales Agreement, until such time as our public float exceeds $75
million. On March 22, 2024, we filed an amendment to the Sales Agreement Prospectus, pursuant to which, as of such date, we may offer and sell shares of
our Class A common stock having an aggregate offering price of up to $22.8 million from time to time through or to B. Riley.

Our ability to access capital when needed is not assured and, if capital is not available when, and in the amounts needed, we could be required to delay,
scale back or abandon some or all of our development programs, commercialization of our products, and other operations which could materially harm our
operations, financial condition and operating results. We expect that our existing cash and cash equivalents, together with proceeds from the sales of our
products and services, will enable us to conduct our planned operations for at least the next 12 months. Factors that could accelerate cash needs include: (i)
delays in achieving scientific and technical milestones; (ii) unforeseen capital expenditures and fabrication costs related to manufacturing; (iii) changes we
may make in our business or commercialization and hiring strategy; (iv) costs of running a public company; (v) higher inflation and increases in product
transportation and labor costs; and (vi) other items affecting our forecasted level of expenditures and use of cash resources including potential acquisitions.

We expect to use our cash to further invest in the development of our products and services, commercial expansion, and for working capital and general
corporate purposes.

Our future cash requirements will depend on many factors, including market adoption of our products; the cost and timing of establishing additional sales,
marketing and distribution capabilities; the cost of our research and development activities; our ability to enter into and maintain collaborations; the cost
and timing of potential future regulatory clearances or approvals for our products; and the effect of competing technological and market developments. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain additional funds on acceptable terms, or at all. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity or equity-
linked securities, our stockholders may experience dilution. Future debt financing, if available, may involve covenants restricting our operations or our
ability to incur additional debt. Any debt or equity financing that we raise may contain terms that are not favorable to us or our stockholders. If we raise
additional funds through collaboration and licensing arrangements with third parties, it may be necessary to relinquish some rights to our technologies or
our products, or grant licenses on terms that are not favorable to us. If we do not have or are not able to obtain sufficient funds, we may have to delay
development or commercialization of our products. We also may have to reduce marketing, customer support or other resources devoted to our products
and services or cease operations.

Cash

As of June 30, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents of $53.8 million. Our future capital requirements may vary from those currently planned and will
depend on various factors including further development costs, commercialization strategy, international expansion, and regulatory costs. If we need
additional funds and are unable to obtain funding on a timely basis, we may need to curtail significantly our product development and commercialization
efforts to provide sufficient funds to continue our operations, which could adversely affect our business prospects.

Cash flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods indicated:

Six Months Ended

June 30,
(In thousands) 2024 2023
Net cash used in operating activities $ (21,893) $ (23,150)
Net cash used in investing activities (216) (283)
Net cash provided by financing activities 114 107
Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash $ (21,995) $ (23,326)
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Net cash used in operating activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, net cash used in operating activities of $21.9 million was due primarily to a net loss of $20.0 million and changes
in operating assets and liabilities of $4.7 million, partially offset by non-cash items of $2.8 million. Non-cash items were primarily stock-based
compensation expense of $2.2 million, depreciation expense of $0.5 million and loss on disposal of property and equipment, net of $0.1 million. Changes
in operating assets and liabilities were driven primarily by an increase in accounts receivable and unbilled receivables of $3.4 million driven primarily by
increased revenue, an increase in inventory of $1.0 million, a decrease in accrued expense and other current liabilities of $0.9 million driven primarily by
lower bonus and salary and benefit accrual due to timing and a decreased headcount, a decrease in deferred grant funding of $0.6 million due to fulfillment
of the BMGF grant milestones, an increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $0.5 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts payable
of $0.9 million, a decrease in prepaid inventory of $0.7 million and an increase in deferred revenue of $0.1 million.

For the six months ended June 30, 2023, net cash used in operating activities of $23.2 million was due primarily to a net loss of $22.8 million and changes
in operating assets and liabilities of $3.2 million, partially offset by non-cash items of $2.8 million. Non-cash items were primarily stock-based
compensation expense of $2.3 million and depreciation expense of $0.5 million. Changes in operating assets and liabilities were driven primarily by an
increase in accounts receivable and unbilled receivables of $1.8 million driven primarily by increased revenue, a decrease in accrued expense and other
current liabilities of $1.8 million driven primarily by lower bonus and salary and benefit accrual due to a decreased headcount, and an increase in inventory
of $1.5 million, partially offset by a decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets of $0.9 million, an increase in accounts payable of $0.7 million, a
decrease in prepaid inventory of $0.3 million and an increase in deferred grant funding of $0.2 million.

Net cash used in investing activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, net cash used in investing activities of $0.2 million was from fixed assets purchased.

For the six months ended June 30, 2023, net cash used in investing activities of $0.3 million was from fixed assets purchased.

Net cash provided by financing activities

For the six months ended June 30, 2024, net cash provided by financing activities of $0.1 million was proceeds from option exercises.
For the six months ended June 30, 2023, net cash provided by financing activities of $0.1 million was proceeds from option exercises.
Contractual obligations

We sponsor a 401(k) defined contribution plan covering all eligible U.S. employees. Contributions to the 401(k) plan are discretionary. We did not make
any matching contributions to the 401(k) plan for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

Through our engagement with the BMGF, we have deployed and continue to deploy the Swoop® system in low-middle income settings without readily-
accessible MRI technology. The multiple grants provided by our research partnership with the BMGF, which commenced funding in the spring of 2020,
support the deployment of 25 Swoop® system and accessories to investigators. As of June 30, 2024 and December 31, 2023, 25 and 22 Swoop® system
units, respectively, were delivered to the BMGF. The ongoing investigation is designed to provide data to validate the potential use of the Swoop® system
in measuring the impact of maternal anemia, malnutrition, infection, and birth-related injury. In May 2023, we were awarded an additional 3-year grant
from the BMGF to continue to develop a scalable approach to measuring neurodevelopment via ULF brain imaging in neonates, infants, and young
children in low-to-middle income countries.
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Our purchase commitments and obligations include all open purchase orders and contractual obligations in the ordinary course of business, including
commitments with contract manufacturers and suppliers, for which we have not received the goods or services. A majority of these purchase obligations are
due within a year. Although open purchase orders are considered enforceable and legally binding, the terms generally allow us the option to cancel,
reschedule, and adjust our requirements based on our business needs prior to the delivery of goods or performance of services.

We had no other significant contractual obligations as of June 30, 2024.

For information on contingencies, refer to Note 13 in the notes to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements for the three and six months
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

Our management's discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations is based on our condensed consolidated financial statements,
which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The preparation of
these condensed consolidated financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the condensed consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported revenue
generated and expenses incurred during the reporting periods. Our estimates are based on our historical experience and various other factors that we believe
are reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about items that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

Except as described in Note 2 “Summary of Significant Accounting Policies — Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements”, to our unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, there have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies
and estimates as compared to the critical accounting policies and estimates disclosed in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2023 filed with the SEC on March 22, 2024.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
A description of recently issued accounting pronouncements that may potentially impact our financial position and results of operations is disclosed in Note

2 to our unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto for the three and six months ended June 30, 2024 and 2023 included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk in the ordinary course of business. Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our results of operations or
financial position due to adverse changes in financial market prices and rates. Our market risk exposure is primarily a result of fluctuations in interest rates,
inflation risk, and foreign exchange risk. We do not hold, issue or enter into any financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes. We do not have
significant exposure to foreign currencies.

Interest Rate Risk

Our cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash as of June 30, 2024 consisted of $53.8 million in money market funds, demand deposit and savings accounts.
Such interest-earning instruments carry a degree of interest rate risk. The goals of our investment policy are liquidity and capital preservation. We believe
that we do not have any material exposure to changes in the fair value of these assets as a result of changes in interest rates due to the short-term nature of
our cash equivalents. Based on our balance sheet position at June 30, 2024, the annualized effect of a 0.5 percentage point decrease in interest rates would
be to decrease earnings before income taxes by $0.3 million.

Inflation Risk

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial condition, or results of operations, other than its impact on the general
economy. Nonetheless, if our costs were to become subject to inflationary pressures, we might not be able to fully offset such higher costs through price
increases. Our inability or failure to do so could harm our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Foreign Exchange Risk

We operate our business primarily within the United States and currently execute the majority of our transactions in U.S. dollars. We have not utilized
hedging strategies with respect to such foreign exchange exposure. This limited foreign currency translation risk is not expected to have a material impact
on our condensed consolidated financial statements.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our principal executive officer and principal financial officer evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of June 30, 2024. Based upon that evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have
concluded that, as of June 30, 2024, the end of the period covered by this report, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable
assurance level to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to our management,
including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, or persons performing similar functions, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions
regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting, identified in connection with the evaluation of such internal control that occurred
during the three months ended June 30, 2024, that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.
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PART II — OTHER INFORMATION
Item1. Legal Proceedings
We are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings.
Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business, results of operations and financial condition are subject to various risks and uncertainties including the risk factors described under the
caption “Risk Factors” in our most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the SEC on March 22, 2024. There have been no material changes in
our risk factors from those described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K, other than the updates to the risk factors set forth below. We may disclose
changes to risk factors or additional risk factors from time to time in our future filings with the SEC.

We could fail to maintain the listing of our Class A common stock on Nasdaq, which could seriously harm the liquidity of our shares and our ability to
raise capital or complete a strategic transaction.

The Nasdaq Stock Market has established continued listing requirements, including a requirement to maintain a minimum closing bid price of at least $1.00
per share. In December 2022 and May 2024, we received written notices from Nasdaq notifying us that, because the closing bid price for our Class A
common stock had fallen below $1.00 per share for 30 consecutive business days, we no longer met the minimum bid price requirement for continued
inclusion on The Nasdaq Global Market. Although we have since regained compliance with the bid price requirement and our Class A common stock
continues to trade on The Nasdaq Global Market, there can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain compliance with the bid price requirement or
other Nasdaq requirements in the future. If we are not able to maintain compliance with Nasdaq requirements, our Class A common stock may be delisted
from Nasdaq, which could have a material adverse effect on us and our stockholders, including by reducing the liquidity of our shares and having a
material adverse effect on our ability to raise capital or complete a strategic transaction.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds
Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Not applicable.

Item 3. Defaults Upon Senior Securities

Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information

10b5-1 Trading Arrangements
From time to time, our officers (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act) and directors may enter into Rule 10b5-1 or non-Rule 10b5-1 trading

arrangements (as each such term is defined in Item 408 of Regulation S-K). During the three and six months ended June 30, 2024, none of our officers or
directors adopted, modified or terminated any such trading arrangements.
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Item 6. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index.
EXHIBIT INDEX
Incorporated by
Reference herein
Exhibit Filed from Form or SEC File/ Reg.
Number Exhibit Description Herewith Schedule Filing Date Number
3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Hyperfine, Inc., as_ X
amended.
10.1+ Nonemployee Director Compensation Policy, As Form 10-Q (Exhibit 5/14/2024 001-39949
amended. 10.1)
31.1 Certification of the Principal Executive Officer X
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0f 2002.
31.2 Certification of the Principal Financial Officer X
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act 0f 2002.
32% Certifications of the Chief Executive Officer and X

Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS Inline XBRL Instance Document - The instance X
document does not appear in the Interactive Data
File because its Inline XBRL tags are embedded
within the Inline XBRL document.

101.SCH Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema X
Document.
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted in X

Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).
+  Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

*  The certifications attached as Exhibit 32 that accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q are not deemed filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission and
are not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Hyperfine, Inc. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended, whether made before or after the date of this Form 10-Q, irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1833769/000095017024059482/hypr-ex10_1.htm

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

HYPERFINE, INC.
Date: August 9, 2024 By: /s/ Maria Sainz
Maria Sainz
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: August 9, 2024 By: /s/ Brett Hale
Brett Hale
Chief Administrative Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Corporate Secretary
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Exhibit 3.1
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
HEALTHCOR CATALIO ACQUISITION CORP.

HealthCor Catalio Acquisition Corp., a corporation organized and existing under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the
“DGCL”), hereby certifies as follows:

ARTICLE 1
NAME
The name of the corporation is “HealthCor Catalio Acquisition Corp.” (hereinafter called the “Corporation”).
ARTICLE IT
REGISTERED OFFICE AND AGENT

The address of the Corporation’s registered office in the State of Delaware is c/o Corporation Service Company, 251 Little Falls Drive,
Wilmington New Castle County, Delaware 19808. The name of its registered agent at such address is Corporation Service Company.

ARTICLE I1I
PURPOSE

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage in any lawful act or activity for which corporations may be organized under the General Corporation
Law of the State of Delaware or any applicable successor act thereto, as the same may be amended from time to time (the “DGCL”).

ARTICLE 1V
CAPITAL STOCK

The total number of shares of all classes of capital stock which the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 628,000,000 shares, consisting of
600,000,000 shares of Class A Common Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Class A Common Stock™), 27,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, par
value $0.0001 per share (“Class B Common Stock™), and 1,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, par value $0.0001 per share (“Preferred Stock™). The
number of authorized shares of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or Preferred Stock may be increased or decreased (but not below (i) the
number of shares thereof then outstanding and (ii) with respect to the Class A Common Stock, the number of shares of Class A Common Stock reserved
pursuant to Section 8 of Part A of this Article IV) by the affirmative vote of the holders of capital stock representing a majority of the voting power of all
the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote thereon irrespective of the provisions of Section 242(b)(2) of the DGCL.

The following is a statement of the designations and the powers, preferences, privileges and rights, and the qualifications, limitations or
restrictions thereof in respect of each class of capital stock of the Corporation.

A. CLASS A COMMON STOCK AND CLASS B COMMON STOCK.

Unless otherwise indicated, references to “Sections” or “Subsections” in this Part A of this Article IV refer to sections and subsections of Part A
of this Article I'V.

1. Equal Status; General. Except as otherwise provided in this Certificate of Incorporation (as amended and/or restated from time to time,
including pursuant to any Preferred Stock Designation (as defined below), this “Certificate of Incorporation”) or required by applicable law, shares of Class
A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock shall have the same rights, privileges and powers, rank equally (including as to dividends and distributions,
and upon any liquidation, dissolution, distribution of assets or winding up of the Corporation), share ratably and be identical in all respects and as to all
matters. The voting, dividend, liquidation and other rights, powers and preferences of the holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock
are subject to and qualified by the rights, powers and preferences of the holders of the Preferred Stock of any series as may be designated by the Board of
Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) upon any issuance of the Preferred Stock of any series.




2. Voting. Except as otherwise required by applicable law, at all meetings of stockholders and on all matters submitted to a vote of
stockholders of the Corporation generally, (i) each holder of Class A Common Stock, as such, shall have the right to one (1) vote per share of Class A
Common Stock held of record by such holder and (ii) (A) prior to the effective time of the Merger (the “Merger Effective Time”), each holder of Class B
Common Stock, as such, shall have the right to one (1) vote per share of Class B Common Stock held of record by such holder and (B) effective upon the
Merger Effective Time, each holder of Class B Common Stock, as such, shall have the right to twenty (20) votes per share of Class B Common Stock held
of record by such holder. Except as otherwise required by applicable law or provided in this Certificate of Incorporation, the holders of shares of Class A
Common Stock and Class B Common Stock, as such, shall (a) at all times vote together as a single class on all matters (including the election of directors)
submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Corporation generally, (b) be entitled to notice of any stockholders’ meeting in accordance with the Bylaws of
the Corporation, as the same may be amended and/or restated from time to time (the “Bylaws”), and (c) be entitled to vote upon such matters and in such
manner as may be provided by applicable law; provided, however, that, except as otherwise required by applicable law, holders of Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock, as such, shall not be entitled to vote on any amendment to this Certificate of Incorporation (including any Preferred Stock
Designation) that relates solely to the terms of one or more outstanding series of Preferred Stock if the holders of such affected series of Preferred Stock are
exclusively entitled, either separately or together with the holders of one or more other such series of Preferred Stock, to vote thereon pursuant to this
Certificate of Incorporation or applicable law. There shall be no cumulative voting.

3. Dividend and Distribution Rights. Shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock shall be treated equally, identically and
ratably, on a per share basis, with respect to any dividends or distributions as may be declared and paid from time to time by the Board out of any assets of
the Corporation legally available therefor; provided, however, that in the event a dividend is paid in the form of shares of Class A Common Stock or Class
B Common Stock (or rights to acquire, or securities convertible into or exchangeable for, such shares), then holders of Class A Common Stock shall be
entitled to receive shares of Class A Common Stock (or rights to acquire, or securities convertible into or exchangeable for, such shares, as the case may
be), and holders of Class B Common Stock shall be entitled to receive shares of Class B Common Stock (or rights to acquire, or securities convertible into
or exchangeable for, such shares, as the case may be), with holders of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock receiving, on a per
share basis, an identical number of shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock (or rights to acquire, or securities convertible into or
exchangeable for, such shares, as the case may be), as applicable. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may pay or make a disparate dividend or
distribution per share of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock (whether in the amount of such dividend or distribution payable per share, the
form in which such dividend or distribution is payable, the timing of the payment, or otherwise) if such disparate dividend or distribution is approved by
the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock, each voting separately as
a class.

4.  Subdivisions, Combinations or Reclassifications. Shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock may not be subdivided,
combined or reclassified unless the shares of the other class is concurrently therewith proportionately subdivided, combined or reclassified in a manner that
maintains the same proportionate equity ownership between the holders of the outstanding Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock on the
record date for such subdivision, combination or reclassification; provided, however, that shares of one such class may be subdivided, combined or
reclassified in a different or disproportionate manner if such subdivision, combination or reclassification is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders
of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock, each voting separately as a class.

5. Liquidation, Dissolution or Winding Up. Subject to the preferential or other rights of any holders of Preferred Stock then outstanding, upon
the dissolution, distribution of assets, liquidation or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, holders of Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock will be entitled to receive ratably all assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders unless disparate or
different treatment of the shares of each such class with respect to distributions upon any such liquidation, dissolution, distribution of assets or winding up
is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock, each

voting separately as a class.

6. Certain Transactions.

6.1  Merger or Consolidation. In the case of any distribution or payment in respect of the shares of Class A Common Stock or Class
B Common Stock, or any consideration into which such shares are converted, upon the consolidation or merger of the Corporation with or into any other
entity, such distribution, payment or



consideration that the holders of shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock have the right to receive, or the right to elect to receive, shall
be made ratably on a per share basis among the holders of the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock as a single class; provided, however,
that shares of such classes may receive, or have the right to elect to receive, different or disproportionate distribution, payment or consideration in
connection with such consolidation, merger or other transaction in order to reflect the special rights, powers and privileges of holders of shares of Class B
Common Stock under this Certificate of Incorporation (which may include, without limitation, securities distributable to the holders of, or issuable upon
the conversion of, each share of Class B Common Stock outstanding immediately prior to such transaction having not more than twenty (20) times the
voting power of any securities distributable to the holders of, or issuable upon the conversion of, each share of Class A Common Stock outstanding
immediately prior to such transaction or any other share of stock then outstanding) or such other rights, powers, privileges or other terms that are no more
favorable, in the aggregate, to the holders of the Class B Common Stock relative to the holders of the Class A Common Stock than those contained in this
Certificate of Incorporation.

6.2  Third-Party Tender or Exchange Offers. The Corporation may not enter into any agreement pursuant to which a third party may
by tender or exchange offer acquire any shares of Class A Common Stock or Class B Common Stock unless the holders of (a) the Class A Common Stock
shall have the right to receive, or the right to elect to receive, the same form of consideration and the same amount of consideration on a per share basis as
the holders of the Class B Common Stock would receive, or have the right to elect to receive, and (b) the Class B Common Stock shall have the right to
receive, or the right to elect to receive, the same form of consideration and the same amount of consideration on a per share basis as the holders of the Class
A Common Stock would receive, or have the right to elect to receive; provided, however, that shares of such classes may receive, or have the right to elect
to receive, different or disproportionate consideration in connection with such tender or exchange offer in order to reflect the special rights, powers and
privileges of the holders of shares of the Class B Common Stock under this Certificate of Incorporation (which may include, without limitation, securities
exchangeable for each share of Class B Common Stock having twenty (20) times the voting power of any securities exchangeable for each share of Class A
Common Stock or any other share of stock then outstanding) or such other rights, powers, privileges or other terms that are no more favorable, in the
aggregate, to the holders of the Class B Common Stock relative to the holders of the Class A Common Stock than those contained in this Certificate of
Incorporation.

7. Conversion.

7.1  Optional Conversion of Class B Common Stock. Following the Merger Effective Time, each share of Class B Common Stock
shall be convertible into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable share of Class A Common Stock at the option of the holder thereof at any time upon written
notice to the Corporation (an “Optional Class B Conversion Event”). Before any holder of Class B Common Stock shall be entitled to convert any shares
of Class B Common Stock into shares of Class A Common Stock, such holder shall surrender the certificate or certificates therefor (if any), duly endorsed,
at the principal corporate office of the Corporation or of any transfer agent for the Class B Common Stock, and shall provide written notice to the
Corporation at its principal corporate office, of such conversion election and shall state therein the name or names (i) in which the certificate or certificates
representing the shares of Class A Common Stock into which the shares of Class B Common Stock are so converted are to be issued (if such shares of
Class A Common Stock are certificated) or (ii) in which such shares of Class A Common Stock are to be registered in book-entry form (if such shares of
Class A Common Stock are uncertificated). If the shares of Class A Common Stock into which the shares of Class B Common Stock are to be converted
are to be issued in a name or names other than the name of the holder of the shares of Class B Common Stock being converted, such notice shall be
accompanied by a written instrument or instruments of transfer, in form satisfactory to the Corporation, duly executed by the holder. The Corporation shall,
as soon as practicable thereafter, issue and deliver at such office to such holder, or to the nominee or nominees of such holder, a certificate or certificates
representing the number of shares of Class A Common Stock to which such holder shall be entitled upon such conversion (if such shares of Class A
Common Stock are certificated) or shall register such shares of Class A Common Stock in book-entry form (if such shares of Class A Common Stock are
uncertificated). Such conversion shall be deemed to be effective immediately prior to the close of business on the date of such surrender of the shares of
Class B Common Stock to be converted following or contemporaneously with the provision of written notice of such conversion election as required by
this Subsection 7.1, the shares of Class A Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be deemed to be outstanding as of such time, and the Person
or Persons entitled to receive the shares of Class A Common Stock issuable upon such conversion shall be deemed to be the record holder or holders of
such shares of Class A Common Stock as of such time. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, shares of Class B Common Stock represented by
a lost, stolen or destroyed stock certificate may be converted pursuant to an Optional Class B Conversion Event if the holder thereof




notifies the Corporation or its transfer agent that such certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed and makes an affidavit of that fact acceptable to the
Corporation and executes an agreement acceptable to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation from any loss incurred by it in connection with such
certificate.

7.2 Automatic Conversion of Class B Common Stock. Effective immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time, each share of
Class B Common Stock issued to the Sponsor and the Other Class B Shareholders in connection with the Domestication and any other shares of Class B
Common Stock issued and outstanding immediately prior to the Merger Effective Time, if any, shall automatically convert into one (1) fully paid and
nonassessable share of Class A Common Stock. In addition, to the extent set forth below, following the Merger Effective Time, each applicable share of
Class B Common Stock shall automatically convert into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable share of Class A Common Stock upon the occurrence of an
event described below (a “Mandatory Class B Conversion Event”):

(a)  Transfers. Each share of Class B Common Stock that is subject to a Transfer (as defined in Section 11), other than a
Permitted Transfer (as defined in Section 11), shall automatically, without further action by the Corporation or the holder thereof,
convert into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable share of Class A Common Stock upon the occurrence of such Transfer (other than a
Permitted Transfer).

(b)  Reduction in Voting Power. Following the Merger Effective Time, each outstanding share of Class B Common Stock
shall automatically, without further action by the Corporation or the holder thereof, convert into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable
share of Class A Common Stock upon the first date on which the Founder, together with all other Qualified Stockholders, collectively
cease to beneficially own at least 20% of the number of shares of Class B Common Stock (as such number of shares is equitably
adjusted in respect of any reclassification, stock dividend, subdivision, combination or recapitalization of the Class B Common Stock)
collectively held by the Founder and his Permitted Transferees as of the Effective Date.

(c)  Affirmative Vote. Following the Merger Effective Time, each outstanding share of Class B Common Stock shall
automatically, without further action by the Corporation or the holder thereof, convert into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable share
of Class A Common Stock upon the date specified by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least two-thirds (2/3) of the then
outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock, voting as a separate class.

7.3  Certificates. Each outstanding stock certificate (if shares are in certificated form) that, immediately prior to the occurrence of a
Mandatory Class B Conversion Event, represented one or more shares of Class B Common Stock subject to such Mandatory Class B Conversion Event
shall, upon such Mandatory Class B Conversion Event, be deemed to represent an equal number of shares of Class A Common Stock, without the need for
surrender or exchange thereof. The Corporation shall, upon the request of any holder whose shares of Class B Common Stock have been converted into
shares of Class A Common Stock as a result of an Optional Class B Conversion Event or a Mandatory Class B Conversion Event (either of the foregoing, a
“Conversion Event”) and upon surrender by such holder to the Corporation of the outstanding certificate(s) formerly representing such holder’s shares of
Class B Common Stock, if any (or, in the case of any lost, stolen or destroyed certificate, upon such holder providing an affidavit of that fact acceptable to
the Corporation and executing an agreement acceptable to the Corporation to indemnify the Corporation from any loss incurred by it in connection with
such certificate), issue and deliver to such holder (or such other Person specified pursuant to Subsection 7.1) certificate(s) representing the shares of Class
A Common Stock into which such holder’s shares of Class B Common Stock were converted as a result of such Conversion Event (if such shares are
certificated) or, if such shares are uncertificated, register such shares in book-entry form. Each share of Class B Common Stock that is converted pursuant
to Subsection 7.1 or 7.2 shall thereupon automatically be retired and shall not be available for reissuance.

7.4  Policies and Procedures. The Corporation may, from time to time, establish such administrative policies and procedures, not in
violation of applicable law or the other provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Corporation, relating to the conversion of the Class
B Common Stock into Class A Common Stock, as it may deem necessary or advisable in connection therewith (it being understood, for the avoidance of
doubt, that this sentence shall not authorize or empower the Corporation to expand upon the events that constitute a Mandatory Class B Conversion Event).




8. Reservation of Stock. The Corporation shall at all times reserve and keep available out of its authorized but unissued shares of Class A
Common Stock, solely for the purpose of effecting the conversion of the shares of Class B Common Stock, such number of shares of Class A Common
Stock as shall from time to time be sufficient to effect the conversion of all outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock into shares of Class A Common
Stock.

9. Protective Provisions. Unless such action is first approved by the affirmative vote (or written consent) of the holders of two-thirds (2/3rd)
of the then-outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock, voting as a separate class, in addition to any other vote required by applicable law, this
Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, prior to the Final Conversion Date, the Corporation shall not, whether by merger, consolidation, certificate of
designation or otherwise (i) amend, alter, repeal or waive any provision of Part A of this Article IV (or adopt any provision inconsistent therewith), or (ii)
except for the shares of Class B Common Stock issued pursuant to the Merger and as provided in Section 10 below, authorize, or issue any shares of, any
class or series of capital stock of the Corporation entitling the holder thereof to more than (1) vote for each share thereof or entitling any class or series of
securities to designate or elect directors as a class or series separate from the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock.

10.  Issuance of Additional Shares. From and after the Effective Date, additional shares of Class B Common Stock may be issued only to a
Qualified Stockholder.

11.  Definitions. For purposes of this Certificate of Incorporation:

“Business Combination Agreement” means that certain Business Combination Agreement, dated as of July 7, 2021, by and among the
Corporation, Optimus Merger Sub I, Inc., Optimus Merger Sub II, Inc., Liminal Sciences, Inc. and Hyperfine, Inc.

“Change of Control Transaction” means (i) the sale, lease, exchange, or other disposition (other than liens and encumbrances created
in the ordinary course of business, including liens or encumbrances to secure indebtedness for borrowed money that are approved by the Board,
so long as no foreclosure occurs in respect of any such lien or encumbrance) of all or substantially all of the Corporation’s property and assets
(which shall for such purpose include the property and assets of any direct or indirect subsidiary of the Corporation), provided that any sale,
lease, exchange or other disposition of property or assets exclusively between or among the Corporation and any direct or indirect subsidiary or
subsidiaries of the Corporation shall not be deemed a “Change of Control Transaction”; (ii) the merger, consolidation, business combination, or
other similar transaction of the Corporation with any other entity, other than a merger, consolidation, business combination, or other similar
transaction that would result in the voting securities of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by
remaining outstanding or by being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity or its parent) more than fifty percent (50%) of the total
voting power represented by the voting securities of the Corporation and more than fifty percent (50%) of the total number of outstanding shares
of the Corporation’s capital stock, in each case as outstanding immediately after such merger, consolidation, business combination, or other
similar transaction, and the stockholders of the Corporation immediately prior to the merger, consolidation, business combination, or other
similar transaction continuing to own voting securities of the Corporation, the surviving entity or its parent immediately following the merger,
consolidation, business combination, or other similar transaction in substantially the same proportions (vis a vis each other) as such stockholders
owned of the voting securities of the Corporation immediately prior to the transaction; and (iii) a recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution, or
other similar transaction involving the Corporation, other than a recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution, or other similar transaction that would
result in the voting securities of the Corporation outstanding immediately prior thereto continuing to represent (either by remaining outstanding
or being converted into voting securities of the surviving entity or its parent) more than fifty percent (50%) of the total voting power represented
by the voting securities of the Corporation and more than fifty percent (50%) of the total number of outstanding shares of the Corporation’s
capital stock, in each case as outstanding immediately after such recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction, and the
stockholders of the Corporation immediately prior to the recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other similar transaction continuing to own
voting securities of the Corporation, the surviving entity or its parent immediately following the recapitalization, liquidation, dissolution or other
similar transaction in substantially the same proportions (vis a vis each other) as such stockholders owned of the voting securities of the
Corporation immediately prior to the transaction.




“Domestication” has the meaning set forth in the Business Combination Agreement.
“Effective Date” means the date on which this Certificate of Incorporation is first effective.

“Family Member” means with respect to any natural person who is a Qualified Stockholder (a) the spouse of such Qualified
Stockholder, (b) the parents, grandparents, lineal descendants, siblings or lineal descendants of siblings of such Qualified Stockholder or (c) the
parents, grandparents, lineal descendants, siblings or lineal descendants of siblings of the spouse of such Qualified Stockholder. Lineal
descendants shall include adopted persons, but only so long as they are adopted during minority.

“Fiduciary” means a Person who (a) is an executor, personal representative, administrator, trustee, manager, managing member,
general partner, director, officer or any other agent of a Person and (b) manages, controls or otherwise has decision-making authority with respect
to such Person, but, in each case, only to the extent that such Person may be removed, directly or indirectly, by one or more Qualified
Stockholders and replaced with another Fiduciary selected, directly or indirectly, by one or more Qualified Stockholders.

“Final Conversion Date” means the date on which no shares of Class B Common Stock shall remain outstanding.

“Founder” means Dr. Jonathan M. Rothberg.

“Liquidation Event” means any liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of the Corporation, whether voluntary or involuntary, or any
Change of Control Transaction.

“Merger” means the mergers of Optimus Merger Sub I, Inc. with and into Hyperfine, Inc. and of Optimus Merger Sub II, Inc. with
and into Liminal Sciences, Inc. pursuant to the Business Combination Agreement.

“Other Class B Shareholders” has the meaning set forth in the Business Combination Agreement.

“Parent” of an entity means any entity that directly or indirectly owns or controls a majority of the voting power of the voting
securities of such entity.

“Permitted Entity” means:

(a)  aPermitted Trust for so long as such Permitted Trust is solely for the current benefit of a Qualified Beneficiary (and,
for the avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding that a remainder interest in such Permitted Trust is for the benefit of any Person other than
a Qualified Beneficiary);

(b) any general partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company, corporation, public benefit corporation or
other entity, in each case, for so long as such entity is exclusively owned, by (1) one or more Qualified Stockholders, (2) one or more
Family Members of such Qualified Stockholders and/or (3) any other Permitted Entity of such Qualified Stockholders;

(¢) any foundation or similar entity or any Qualified Charity for so long as (i) one or more Qualified Stockholders
continues to, directly or indirectly, exercise Voting Control over any shares of Class B Common Stock from time to time Transferred to
such foundation or similar entity or Qualified Charity, and/or (ii) a Fiduciary of such foundation or similar entity or Qualified Charity
exercises Voting Control over such shares of Class B Common Stock;

(d) an Individual Retirement Account, as defined in Section 408(a) of the Internal Revenue Code, or a pension, profit
sharing, stock bonus or other type of plan or trust of which such Qualified Stockholder is a participant or beneficiary and which
satisfies the requirements for qualification under Section 401 of the Internal Revenue Code for so long as such Qualified Stockholder
has sole dispositive power and exclusive Voting Control with respect to the shares of Class B Common Stock held in such account,
plan or trust;

(e) the executor or personal representative of the estate of a Qualified Stockholder upon the death of such Qualified
Stockholder solely to the extent the executor or personal representative is acting in the capacity of executor or personal representative
of such estate;

(f) arevocable living trust, which revocable living trust is itself both a Permitted Trust and a Qualified Stockholder, during the
lifetime of the natural person grantor of such trust; or



(g) arevocable living trust (including any irrevocable administrative trust resulting from the death of the natural person
grantor of such trust) which trust is itself both a Permitted Trust and a Qualified Stockholder, following the death of the natural person
grantor of such trust, solely to the extent that such shares are held in such trust pending distribution to the beneficiaries designated in
such trust.

Except as explicitly provided for herein, a Permitted Entity of a Qualified Stockholder shall not cease to be a Permitted Entity solely
by reason of the death of that Qualified Stockholder.

“Permitted Transfer” means, and is restricted to, any Transfer of a share of Class B Common Stock:

(a) by a Qualified Stockholder that is not a Permitted Entity to (i) one or more Family Members of such Qualified
Stockholder, (ii) any Permitted Entity of such Qualified Stockholder, or (iii) any Permitted Entity of one or more Family Members of
such Qualified Stockholder;

(b) by a Permitted Entity of a Qualified Stockholder to (i) such Qualified Stockholder or one or more Family Members of
such Qualified Stockholder, (ii) any other Permitted Entity of such Qualified Stockholder, or (iii) any Permitted Entity of one or more
Family Members of such Qualified Stockholder; or

(¢) any Transfer approved in advance by the Board, or a duly authorized committee of the Board, upon a determination
that such Transfer is not inconsistent with the purposes of the foregoing provisions of this definition of “Permitted Transfer.”

For the avoidance of doubt, the direct Transfer of any share or shares of Class B Common Stock by a holder thereof to any other
Person shall qualify as a “Permitted Transfer” within the meaning of this Section, if such Transfer could have been completed indirectly through
one or more transactions involving more than one Transfer, so long as each Transfer in such transaction or transactions would otherwise have
qualified as a “Permitted Transfer” within the meaning of this Section. For the further avoidance of doubt, a Transfer may qualify as a
“Permitted Transfer” within the meaning of this Section under any one or more than one of the clauses of this Section as may be applicable to
such Transfer, without regard to any proviso in, or requirement of, any other clause(s) of this Section.

“Permitted Transferee” means, as of any date of determination, a Person that is entitled to be a transferee of shares of Class B
Common Stock in a Transfer that, as of such date, would constitute a Permitted Transfer.

“Permitted Trust” means a bona fide trust where each trustee is (a) a Qualified Stockholder; (b) a Family Member of a Qualified
Stockholder; or (c) a professional in the business of providing trustee services, including private professional fiduciaries, trust companies,
accounting, legal or financial advisor, or bank trust departments.

“Person” means any individual, corporation, limited liability company, limited or general partnership, joint venture, association, joint-
stock company, trust, unincorporated organization or other entity, whether domestic or foreign.

“Qualified Beneficiary” means (i) one or more Qualified Stockholders, (ii) one or more Family Members of a Qualified Stockholder
and/or (iii) any other Permitted Entities of one or more Qualified Stockholders.

“Qualified Charity” means a domestic U.S. charitable organization, contributions to which are deductible for federal income, estate,
gift and generation skipping transfer tax purposes.

“Qualified Stockholder” means (i) the Founder, (ii) any Person that receives Class B Common Stock in the Merger, and (iii) any
Person that is a Permitted Transferee.

“Requisite Stockholder Consent” means (i) prior to the Voting Threshold Date, the action at a meeting or by written consent (to the
extent permitted under this Certificate of Incorporation) of the holders of a majority in voting power of the shares of capital stock of the
Corporation that would then be entitled to vote in the election of directors at an annual meeting of stockholders, and (ii) on and after the Voting
Threshold Date, the action at a meeting or by written consent (to the extent permitted under this Certificate of Incorporation) of the holders of
two-thirds (2/3rds) of the voting power of the shares of capital stock of




the Corporation that would then be entitled to vote in the election of directors at an annual meeting of stockholders.
“Sponsor” has the meaning set forth in the Business Combination Agreement.

“Transfer” of a share of Class B Common Stock means, directly or indirectly, any sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance,
hypothecation or other transfer or disposition of such share or any legal or beneficial interest in such share, whether or not for value and whether
voluntary or involuntary or by operation of law (including by merger, consolidation or otherwise), including, without limitation, the transfer of a
share of Class B Common Stock to a broker or other nominee or the transfer of, or entering into a binding agreement with respect to, Voting
Control over such share by proxy or otherwise. A Transfer shall also be deemed to have occurred with respect to a share of Class B Common
Stock beneficially held by a Person that received shares in a Permitted Transfer if there occurs any act or circumstance that causes such Person to
no longer be a Permitted Transferee. In addition, for the avoidance of doubt, a Transfer shall be deemed to have occurred if a holder that is a
partnership, limited partnership, limited liability company or corporation distributes or otherwise transfers its shares of Class B Common Stock
to its partners, stockholders, members or other equity owners. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following shall not be considered a Transfer:

(a) the granting of a revocable proxy to officers or directors of the Corporation at the request of the Board in connection
with (i) actions to be taken at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, or (ii) any other action of the stockholders permitted by
this Certificate of Incorporation;

(b)  entering into a voting trust, agreement or arrangement (with or without granting a proxy) solely with stockholders
who are holders of Class B Common Stock, which voting trust, agreement or arrangement does not involve any payment of cash,
securities or other property to the holder of the shares subject thereto other than the mutual promise to vote shares in a designated
manner; for the avoidance of doubt, any voting trust, agreement or arrangement entered into prior to the Effective Date shall not
constitute a Transfer;

(c) the pledge of shares of Class B Common Stock by a stockholder that creates a mere security interest in such shares
pursuant to a bona fide loan or indebtedness transaction for so long as such stockholder continues to exercise Voting Control over such
pledged shares; provided, however, that a foreclosure on such shares or other similar action by the pledgee shall constitute a Transfer
unless such foreclosure or similar action qualifies as a Permitted Transfer at such time;

(d) any change in the trustee(s) or the Person(s) and/or entity(ies) having or exercising Voting Control over shares of
Class B Common Stock held by a Permitted Entity, provided that following such change such Permitted Entity continues to be a
Permitted Entity;

(e) (1) the assignment, transfer, conveyance, hypothecation or other transfer or disposition of shares of Class B Common
Stock by a Qualified Stockholder to a grantor retained annuity trust (a “GRAT”) for which the trustee is (A) such Qualified
Stockholder, (B) a Family Member of such Qualified Stockholder, (C) a professional in the business of providing trustee services,
including private professional fiduciaries, trust companies, accounting, legal or financial advisors, or bank trust departments, (D) an
employee of the Corporation or a member of the Board or (E) solely in the case of any such trust established by a natural Person
grantor, any other bona fide trustee; (2) the change in trustee for such a GRAT from one of the Persons identified in the foregoing
subclauses (A) through (E) to another Person identified in the foregoing subclauses (A) through (E); and (3) the distribution of such
shares of Class B Common Stock from such GRAT to such Qualified Stockholder (provided, however, that the distribution of shares of
Class B Common Stock to any beneficiary of such GRAT except such Qualified Stockholder shall constitute a Transfer unless such
distribution qualifies as a Permitted Transfer at such time);

(f) any Transfer of shares of Class B Common Stock, whether by a Qualified Stockholder or a Permitted Entity, to a
broker or other nominee for so long as the transferor retains (i) Voting Control, (ii) sole dispositive power over such shares of Class B
Common Stock, and (iii) the economic consequences of ownership of such shares of Class B Common Stock;



(g) entering into a trading plan pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, with a
broker or other nominee; provided, however, that a sale of such shares of Class B Common Stock pursuant to such plan shall constitute
a “Transfer” at the time of such sale;

(h) in connection with a Change of Control Transaction (1) the entering into a support, voting, tender or similar
agreement or arrangement, (2) the granting of any proxy and/or (3) the tendering of any shares in any tender or exchange offer for all
of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock;

(1)  due to the fact that the spouse of any holder of shares of Class B Common Stock possesses or obtains an interest in
such holder’s shares of Class B Common Stock arising solely by reason of the application of the community property laws of any
jurisdiction, so long as no other event or circumstance shall exist or have occurred that constitutes a “Transfer” of such shares of Class
B Common Stock; provided that any transfer of shares by any holder of shares of Class B Common Stock to such holder’s spouse,
including a transfer in connection with a divorce proceeding, domestic relations order or similar legal requirement, shall constitute a
“Transfer” of such shares of Class B Common Stock unless (1) otherwise exempt from the definition of Transfer, or (2) in connection
with such divorce proceeding, domestic relations order or similar legal requirement, a Qualified Stockholder is entitled to retain (and
for so long as a Qualified Stockholder does actually retain) either (x) the exclusive right to exercise the power to vote or direct the
voting of such shares of Class B Common Stock, or (y) sole dispositive power over such shares of Class B Common Stock; and

(j)  entering into a support, voting, tender or similar agreement, arrangement or understanding (with or without granting a
proxy) in connection with a Liquidation Event or consummating the actions or transactions contemplated therein (including, without
limitation, tendering shares of Class B Common Stock in connection with a Liquidation Event, the consummation of a Liquidation
Event or the sale, assignment, transfer, conveyance, hypothecation or other transfer or disposition of shares of Class B Common Stock
or any legal or beneficial interest in shares of Class B Common Stock in connection with a Liquidation Event), provided that such
Liquidation Event was approved by the Board.

“Voting Control” means, with respect to a share of Class B Common Stock, the power (whether exclusive or shared) to vote or direct
the voting of such share by proxy, voting agreement or otherwise.

“Voting_Threshold Date” means the first date on which the issued and outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock represents less
than 50% of the total voting power of the then outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation that would then be entitled to vote in the
election of directors at an annual meeting of stockholders.

B. PREFERRED STOCK

Subject to Article IV, Part A Section 9, Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time in one or more series, each of such series to have such
terms as stated or expressed herein and in the resolution or resolutions providing for the issue of such series adopted by the Board as hereinafter provided.
Any shares of Preferred Stock which may be redeemed, purchased or acquired by the Corporation may be reissued except as otherwise provided by law.

Subject to Article IV, Part A Section 9, authority is hereby expressly granted to the Board from time to time to issue the Preferred Stock in one or
more series, and in connection with the creation of any such series, by adopting a resolution or resolutions providing for the issuance of the shares thereof
and by filing a certificate of designations relating thereto in accordance with the DGCL (a “Preferred Stock Designation”), to determine and fix the number
of shares of such series and such voting powers, full or limited, or no voting powers, and such designations, preferences and relative participating, optional
or other special rights, and qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, including without limitation thereof, dividend rights, conversion rights,
redemption privileges and liquidation preferences, as shall be stated and expressed in such resolutions, all to the full extent now or hereafter permitted by
the DGCL. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the resolutions providing for issuance of any series of Preferred Stock may provide that such
series shall be superior or rank equally or be junior to any other series of Preferred Stock to the extent permitted by law.




ARTICLE V
AMENDMENT OF THE CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

The Corporation reserves the right to amend, alter, change, adopt or repeal any provision contained in this Certificate of Incorporation, in the
manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation; provided, however,
that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Certificate of Incorporation or any provision of law that might otherwise permit a lesser vote or no vote,
but in addition to any vote of the holders of shares of any class or series of capital stock of the Corporation required by law or by this Certificate of
Incorporation, the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the then-outstanding shares of capital stock of the Corporation
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors, voting together as a single class, shall be required to amend or repeal any provision of this Certificate
of Incorporation, or adopt any provision of this Certificate of Incorporation inconsistent therewith; provided further, so long as any shares of Class B
Common Stock remain outstanding, the Corporation shall not, without the prior affirmative vote of the holders of two-thirds (2/3rds) of the outstanding
shares of Class B Common Stock, voting as a separate class, in addition to any other vote required by applicable law or this Certificate of Incorporation,
directly or indirectly, whether by amendment, or through merger, recapitalization, consolidation or otherwise amend, alter, change, repeal or adopt any
provision of this Certificate of Incorporation (1) in a manner that is inconsistent with, or that otherwise alters or changes, any of the voting, conversion,
dividend or liquidation provisions of the shares of Class B Common Stock or other rights, powers, preferences or privileges of the shares of Class B
Common Stock; (2) to provide for each share of Class A Common Stock or Preferred Stock to have more than one (1) vote per share or any rights to a
separate class vote of the holders of shares of Class A Common Stock other than as provided by this Certificate of Incorporation or required by the DGCL,;
or (3) to otherwise adversely impact or affect the rights, powers, preferences or privileges of the shares of Class B Common Stock in a manner that is
disparate from the manner in which it affects the rights, powers, preferences or privileges of the shares of Class A Common Stock; provided further, so
long as any shares of Class A Common Stock remain outstanding, the Corporation shall not, without the prior affirmative vote of the holders of a majority
of the outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock, voting as a separate class, in addition to any other vote required by applicable law or this Certificate
of Incorporation, directly or indirectly, whether by amendment, or through merger, recapitalization, consolidation or otherwise amend, alter, change, repeal
or adopt any provision of this Certificate of Incorporation (1) in a manner that is inconsistent with, or that otherwise alters or changes the powers,
preferences, or special rights of the shares of Class A Common Stock so as to affect them adversely; or (2) to provide for each share of Class B Common
Stock to have more than twenty (20) votes per share or any rights to a separate class vote of the holders of shares of Class B Common Stock other than as
provided by this Certificate of Incorporation or required by the DGCL. For the avoidance of doubt, (i) nothing in the immediately preceding provisos shall
limit the rights of the Board as specified in Article IV, Part B (as qualified by Article IV, Part A, Section 9) or Article VI of this Certificate of
Incorporation, and (ii) notwithstanding anything in this Article V to the contrary, any amendment to a provision that contemplates a specific approval
requirement by the stockholders (or any class of capital stock of the Corporation) in this Certificate of Incorporation (including the definition of Requisite
Stockholder Consent and Voting Threshold Date) shall require the greater of (x) the specific approval requirement by the stockholders (or any class of
capital stock of the Corporation) contemplated in such provision, and (y) the approval requirements contemplated by this Article V.

ARTICLE VI
AMENDMENT OF THE BYLAWS

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred upon it by the DGCL, and subject to the terms of any series of Preferred Stock, the
Board shall have the power to adopt, amend, alter or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation by the affirmative vote of a majority of the directors present at
any regular or special meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present in any manner not inconsistent with the laws of the State of Delaware or this
Certificate of Incorporation. The stockholders may not adopt, amend, alter or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation, or adopt any provision inconsistent
therewith, unless such action is approved, in addition to any other vote required by this Certificate of Incorporation, by the Requisite Stockholder Consent.

ARTICLE VII
CORPORATE OPPORTUNITIES

The Corporation renounces any interest or expectancy of the Corporation in, or in being offered an opportunity to participate in, any Excluded
Opportunity. An “Excluded Opportunity” is any matter, transaction or




interest that is presented to, or acquired, created or developed by, or which otherwise comes into the possession of, any director of the Corporation who is
not an employee of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries (a “Covered Person”), unless such matter, transaction or interest is presented to, or acquired,
created or developed by, or otherwise comes into the possession of, a Covered Person expressly and solely in such Covered Person’s capacity as a director
of the Corporation.

ARTICLE VIII
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

This Article VIII is inserted for the management of the business and for the conduct of the affairs of the Corporation, and for further definition,
limitation and regulation of the powers of the Corporation and of its directors and stockholders.

(A)  General Powers. The business and affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the Board, except as
otherwise provided by law.

(B)  Number of Directors. Subject to the rights of holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect directors, the number of the
directors of the Corporation shall be fixed from time to time solely by the Board; provided, however, that prior to the Voting Threshold Date,
unless otherwise approved by the Requisite Stockholder Consent, the number of the directors shall not exceed nine (9). For the avoidance of
doubt, no decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.

(C)  Tenure. The directors shall be elected or appointed for a term of office continuing until the next annual meeting of stockholders
of the Corporation. Each director shall hold office until such director’s successor is elected and qualified, or until such director’s earlier death,
resignation, disqualification or removal from office. Any director may resign at any time upon notice to the Corporation given in writing by any
electronic transmission permitted in the Corporation’s Bylaws or in accordance with applicable law.

(D)  Vacancies; Newly Created Directorships. Subject to the rights of holders of any series of Preferred Stock, any newly created
directorship that results from an increase in the number of directors or any vacancy on the Board that results from the death, disability,
resignation, disqualification or removal of any director or from any other cause shall be filled: (i) prior to the Voting Threshold Date, (x) if the
number of directors fixed pursuant to Section B of this Article VIII does not exceed nine (9), by the affirmative vote of a majority of the total
number of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director, or by the stockholders of the Corporation with the
Requisite Stockholder Consent, and (y) if the number of directors fixed pursuant to Section B of this Article VIII exceeds nine (9), solely by the
stockholders of the Corporation with the Requisite Stockholder Consent; or (ii) on or after the Voting Threshold Date solely by the affirmative
vote of a majority of the total number of directors then in office, even if less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.

(E) Removal. Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock expressly set forth in a Preferred Stock
Designation adopted in compliance with this Certification of Incorporation, any director or the entire Board may be removed from office at any
time with or without cause and for any or no reason only with and immediately upon the Requisite Stockholder Consent.

(F)  Committees. Pursuant to the Bylaws of the Corporation, the Board may establish one or more committees to which may be
delegated any or all of the powers and duties of the Board to the full extent permitted by law.

(G)  Stockholder Nominations and Introduction of Business. Advance notice of stockholder nominations for election of directors
and other business to be brought by stockholders before a meeting of stockholders shall be given in the manner provided by the Bylaws.

(H)  Preferred Stock Directors. During any period when the holders of any series of Preferred Stock have the right to elect
additional directors as provided for or fixed pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of Article IV hereof or any Preferred Stock
Designation, then upon commencement and for the duration of the period during which such right continues: (i) the then otherwise total number
of authorized directors of the Corporation shall automatically be increased by such specified number of directors, and the holders of such
Preferred Stock shall be entitled to elect the additional directors so provided for or fixed




pursuant to said provisions, and (ii) each such additional director shall serve until such director’s successor shall have been duly elected and
qualified, or until such director’s right to hold such office terminates pursuant to said provisions, whichever occurs earlier, subject to his earlier
death, disqualification, resignation or removal. Except as otherwise provided for or fixed pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of
Article IV hereof or any Preferred Stock Designation, whenever the holders of any series of Preferred Stock having such right to elect additional
directors are divested of such right pursuant to the provisions of such stock, all such additional directors elected by the holders of such stock, or
elected or appointed to fill any vacancies resulting from the death, resignation, disqualification or removal of such additional directors shall
automatically cease to be qualified as directors, the terms of office of all such directors shall forthwith terminate and the total authorized number
of directors of the Corporation shall be reduced accordingly.

ARTICLE IX
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Unless and except to the extent that the Bylaws shall so require, the election of directors of the Corporation need not be by written ballot. The
vote required for election of a director by the stockholders at a meeting of stockholders shall, except in a contested election, be the affirmative vote of a
majority of the votes cast in favor or against the election of a nominee at a meeting of stockholders. In a contested election, (i) the directors shall be elected
by a plurality of the votes cast at a meeting of stockholders by the holders of stock entitled to vote in such election, and (ii) stockholders shall not be

permitted to vote against a nominee. An election shall be considered contested if, as of the tenth (IOth) day preceding the date the Corporation first mails
its notice of meeting for such meeting to the stockholders of the Corporation, there are more nominees for election than directorships on the Board to be
filled by election at the meeting.

ARTICLE X
LIMITATION OF DIRECTOR LIABILITY

To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as the same exists or as may hereafter be amended, a director of the Corporation shall not be
personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director; provided, however, that nothing
contained in this Article X shall eliminate or limit the liability of a director (i) for any breach of the director’s duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its
stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) pursuant to the
provisions of Section 174 of the DGCL, or (iv) for any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit. No repeal or modification
of this Article X shall apply to or have any adverse effect on any right or protection of, or any limitation of the liability of, a director of the Corporation
existing at the time of such repeal or modification with respect to acts or omissions occurring prior to such repeal or modification.

ARTICLE XI
INDEMNIFICATION

The Corporation may indemnify, and advance expenses to, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any person who was or is a party to or is
threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative by
reason of the fact that the person is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as
a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise.

ARTICLE XII
CONSENT OF STOCKHOLDERS IN LIEU OF MEETING

Subject to the terms of any series of Preferred Stock, any action required or permitted to be taken by the stockholders of the Corporation must be
effected at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders and may not be effected by written consent in lieu of a meeting; provided, that prior to the
Voting Threshold Date, any action required or permitted to be taken at any annual or special meeting of stockholders of the Corporation may be taken
without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the
holders of the outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at
which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the Corporation by delivery to its registered office in the State of
Delaware, its principal



place of business, or an officer or agent of the Corporation having custody of the books in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded.
Delivery made to the Corporation’s registered office shall be made by hand, overnight courier or by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested.

ARTICLE XIII
SPECIAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

Special meetings of stockholders for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the Board, the Chairperson of the Board or the Chief
Executive Officer of the Corporation, and may not be called by another other Person or Persons; provided that, prior to the Final Conversion Date, special
meetings of stockholders for any purpose or purposes may also be called by or at the request of stockholders of the Corporation collectively holding shares
of capital stock of the Corporation with voting power sufficient to provide the Requisite Stockholder Consent. Business transacted at any special meeting
of stockholders shall be limited to matters relating to the purpose or purposes stated in the notice of meeting.

ARTICLE XIV
FORUM SELECTION

Unless the Corporation consents in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, (i) the Court of Chancery (the “Chancery Court”) of the State
of Delaware (or, in the event that the Chancery Court does not have jurisdiction, the federal district court for the District of Delaware or other state courts
of the State of Delaware) shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law, be the sole and exclusive forum for (1) any derivative action or proceeding brought on
behalf of the Corporation, (2) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by, or any other wrongdoing by, any current or former
director, officer, other employee or stockholder of the Corporation, (3) any action asserting a claim against the Corporation arising pursuant to any
provision of the DGCL, this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws or as to which the DGCL confers jurisdiction on the Court of Chancery, (4) any
action to interpret, apply, enforce or determine the validity of any provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation or the Bylaws, or (5) any other action
asserting a claim governed by the internal affairs doctrine and (ii) notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, but subject to the foregoing provisions
of this Article XIV, the federal district courts of the United States shall be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any action, suit or proceeding asserting
a cause of action arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. If any action the subject matter of which is within the scope of the preceding
sentence is filed in a court other than the applicable courts specified in the immediately preceding sentence (a “Foreign Action”) in the name of any
stockholder, such stockholder shall, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, be deemed to have consented to (a) the personal jurisdiction of the
state and federal courts located within the State of Delaware in connection with any action brought in any such court to enforce the preceding sentence and
(b) having service of process made upon such stockholder in any such action by service upon such stockholder’s counsel in the Foreign Action as agent for
such stockholder. This provision will not apply to claims arising under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or other federal securities laws
for which there is exclusive federal jurisdiction. Any Person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in shares of capital stock of
the Corporation shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the provisions of this Article XIV.

ARTICLE XV
MISCELLANEOUS

If any provision or provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation shall be held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable as applied to any
circumstance for any reason whatsoever: (i) the validity, legality and enforceability of such provisions in any other circumstance and of the remaining
provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation (including, without limitation, each portion of any paragraph of this Certificate of Incorporation containing
any such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable that is not itself held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable) shall not in any way be affected
or impaired thereby and (ii) to the fullest extent possible and without limiting any other provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation (or any other
provision of the Bylaws or any agreement entered into by the Corporation), the provisions of this Certificate of Incorporation (including, without limitation,
each such portion of any paragraph of this Certificate of Incorporation containing any such provision held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable) shall be
construed so as to permit the Corporation to protect its directors, officers, employees and agents from personal liability in respect of their good faith service
to, or for the benefit of, the Corporation to the fullest extent permitted by law.



To the fullest extent permitted by law, each and every Person purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest (of any nature whatsoever) in any
shares of the capital stock of the Corporation shall be deemed, by reason of and from and after the time of such purchase or other acquisition, to have notice
of and to have consented to all of the provisions of (a) this Certificate of Incorporation, (b) the Bylaws and (c) any amendment to this Certificate of
Incorporation or the Bylaws enacted or adopted in accordance with this Certificate of Incorporation, the Bylaws and applicable law.

[Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate of Incorporation on December 21, 2021.

/s/ Michelle Hendrickson
Michelle Hendrickson
Incorporator

Address of Incorporator:
609 Main Street
Houston, TX 77002

Signature Page to Certificate of Incorporation



CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
HEALTHCOR CATALIO ACQUISITION CORP.

A. HealthCor Catalio Acquisition Corp., a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the
“Corporation”), does hereby certify as follows:

1. The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation is hereby amended by deleting in its entirety Article I thereof and replacing therewith
the following new Article I:

“ARTICLE 1
NAME
The name of the corporation is “Hyperfine, Inc.” (hereinafter called the “Corporation”).”

2. The amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation herein certified has been duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242
of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware and shall be effective at 9:59 a.m. Eastern Time on December 22, 2021.

[Signature Page to Follow]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused this Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Corporation to be signed by its duly authorized officer this 22nd day of December, 2021.

HEALTHCOR CATALIO ACQUISITION CORP.

By: /s/ Arthur Cohen
Name: Arthur Cohen
Title: Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
HYPERFINE, INC.
It is hereby certified that:
FIRST: The name of the corporation is Hyperfine, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

SECOND:  The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation™), is hereby further amended by striking
out Article X in its entirety and by substituting in lieu of the following:

LIMITATION OF DIRECTOR AND OFFICER LIABILITY

To the fullest extent permitted by the DGCL as the same exists or as may hereafter be amended, a director or officer of the Corporation shall not be
personally liable to the Corporation or its stockholders for monetary damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director or an officer; provided, however,
that nothing contained in this Article X shall eliminate or limit the liability of a director or an officer (i) for any breach of the director’s or officer’s duty of
loyalty to the Corporation or its stockholders, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of
law, (iii) pursuant to the provisions of Section 174 of the DGCL, (iv) for any transaction from which the director or officer derived an improper personal
benefit, or (v) with respect to an officer, in any action by or in the right of the Corporation. No repeal or modification of this Article X shall apply to or
have any adverse effect on any right or protection of, or any limitation of the liability of, a director or officer of the Corporation existing at the time of such
repeal or modification with respect to acts or omissions occurring prior to such repeal or modification. All references in this paragraph to an officer shall
mean only a person who at the time of an act or omission as to which liability is asserted is deemed to have consented to service by the delivery of process
to the registered agent of the Corporation pursuant to § 3114(b) of Title 10 (for purposes of this sentence only, treating residents of the State of Delaware as
if they were nonresidents to apply § 3114(b) of Title 10 to this sentence).

THIRD: The amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation herein certified has been duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

EXECUTED, effective as of this 9" day of June, 2023.
HYPERFINE, INC.

By: /s/ Maria Sainz
Name: Maria Sainz
Title: President and Chief Executive Officer




CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
HYPERFINE, INC.
It is hereby certified that:
FIRST: The name of the corporation is Hyperfine, Inc. (the “Corporation”).

SECOND:  The Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, as amended (the “Certificate of Incorporation”), is hereby further amended by amending
Article IV, Part A, Section 7.2 to add the following subsection (d):

(d) Sunset Provision. Each outstanding share of Class B Common Stock shall automatically, without further action by the Corporation or the holder
thereof, convert into one (1) fully paid and nonassessable share of Class A Common Stock on December 22, 2028.

THIRD: The amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation herein certified has been duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

EXECUTED, effective as of this 12% day of June, 2024.
HYPERFINE, INC.

By: /s/ Maria Sainz
Maria Sainz
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS UNDER SECTION 302

I, Maria Sainz, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Hyperfine, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 2024

/s/ Maria Sainz

Maria Sainz
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS UNDER SECTION 302

I, Brett Hale, certify that:
1. Ihave reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Hyperfine, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent
fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting.

Date: August 9, 2024

/s/ Brett Hale
Brett Hale

Chief Administrative Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and
Corporate Secretary
(principal financial officer)




Exhibit 32
CERTIFICATIONS UNDER SECTION 906

Pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of section 1350, chapter 63 of title 18, United States Code), each of the
undersigned officers of Hyperfine, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company”), does hereby certify, to such officer’s knowledge, that:

The Quarterly Report for the quarter ended June 30, 2024 (the “Form 10-Q”) of the Company fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or
15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: August 9, 2024 /s/ Maria Sainz

Maria Sainz
President and Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Dated: August 9, 2024 /s/ Brett Hale
Brett Hale
Chief Administrative Officer, Chief Financial Officer,
Treasurer and Corporate Secretary
(principal financial officer)







